
Proxies for Senate meetings must be a Senate-eligible individual from the same academic unit. No 
individual may carry more than one proxy. 

PLEASE SEND PROXIES TO LAUREN BAKER: facsen@uah.edu 

 

FACULTY SENATE 
MEETING #588 AGENDA 

SST 050 

THURSDAY, April 19, 2018 

12:50 PM to 2:20 PM 

 

Call to Order 

 
1. Approve Faculty Senate Meeting #587 Minutes from March 15, 2018 

 
2. Accept FSEC Report from April 12, 2018 
 
3. Administrative Reports 
 
4. Officer and Committee Reports 

 

 Bill 420 – Second Reading 

 Response to Sexual Misconduct Policy 

 Bill 422 – Second Reading, came from Staff Senate 

 Bill 423 – Second Reading 
 
5. Miscellaneous/Additional business 

Adjourn 

 
Faculty Senate 



Bill Topic Resolution Submitted Status/Response

393 SIE scores 17/18‐09 1/11/2018

402 Internal Limited Prop. Submiss 17/18‐06 11/16/2017

408 Faculty Career Advancement 17/18‐08 11/16/2017

410 Retention Summer Course Work 17/18‐01 9/14/2017 Approved

411 Appendix G (Patent Policy) 17/18‐02 .9/22/2017

Patent and Distribution Separated

Patent Policy = Board Rule 509

412 Appendix H (Copyright) 17/18‐03 .9/22/2017 

413 Signature Authority 17/18‐04 9/22/2017 Denied

414 Aurhority of Handbook 17/18‐05 9/22/2017 Denied

415 Re‐establish Budget Committee 17/18‐07 11/16/2017 Approved starting AY 2018/19

416 Sexual Assault Evidentary Std 17/18‐11 3/22/2018

417 Indirect Cost Recovery 17/18‐10 2/16/2018

418 Teaching by Tenued Fac Personnel Development Cmte

419 Heavy Teaching Load 17/18‐12 3/22/2018

420 Vacant Faculty Positions passed 1st reading

421 Chapter 5 1/18/2018

422 Staff Clinic passed 1st reading

423 OIT Policy Redress  passed 1st reading



Page 1 of 33 
 

The University of Alabama in Huntsville  
 

Sexual Misconduct Policy 
 
 

Number 01.04.02 

Division Office of the President - Compliance  

Date   

Purpose To prohibit and define particular acts of sexual discrimination and 
misconduct and to outline resolution procedures for providing prompt and 
fair resolution to complaints of sexual discrimination and misconduct.   

 
Policy  The University of Alabama in Huntsville (the “University” or “UAH”) is 

committed to providing a safe and non-discriminatory educational and 
working environment for its students, trainees, faculty, staff, post-doctoral 
fellows, and other members of the University community.  The University 
is committed to providing an environment for its members that is free from 
sexual harassment, sexual assault, relationship violence, stalking, 
discrimination based on sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender 
expression, and related retaliation (collectively referred to as “Prohibited 
Conduct.”). The University expects individuals who live, work, teach, 
study, or visit within this community to contribute positively to the 
environment and to refrain from behaviors that deprive community 
members of equal access to the University’s programs and activities. 
Individuals found to be in violation of this Policy will be subject to 
corrective action up to and including termination from employment or 
expulsion from the University. The University will respond promptly and 
effectively to reports of Prohibited Conduct and will take appropriate action 
to prevent its occurrence, to correct and address its effects and, when 
necessary, to issue discipline for violations of this Policy.  

 
I. SCOPE (To Whom and Where Policy Applies) 
This Policy applies to:  

- All students and employees regardless of sex, gender identity, gender 
expression, or sexual orientation and regardless of where the alleged violation 
occurred (on or off-campus, if it affects the campus or the access to education of 
a student);  

- All acts of Prohibited Conduct, including those involving non-students or non-
employees, that occur on campus or at any location involving a University-
sponsored activity or event; and,  

- Online behavior, social media, and inappropriate use of technology that may 
affect the educational experience and violate this Policy. 

 



Page 2 of 33 
 

II. PROHIBITED CONDUCT 
For the purpose of this Policy, conduct that is deemed, by preponderance of the 
evidence (which means more likely than not the alleged conduct occurred) to be 
gender- based and meet the definition of any of the types of prohibited conduct 
identified below or in Appendix 1 of this policy (whether defined by UAH, or by State 
(AL) or Federal (FED) criminal laws, as amended from time to time) constitutes a 
violation of this Policy.  
 
Prohibited Conduct Offenses include, but are not limited to:  
 

1. Sex Discrimination. Sex Discrimination is conduct that is based upon an 
individual’s sex, pregnancy, gender identity, or gender expression that adversely 
affects a term or condition of an individual’s employment, education, living 
environment, or participation in a University activity. 

2. Sexual Harassment: Sexual Harassment is defined as  
A. Unwelcomed, sexual, sex based and/or gender based verbal, written, online 

and/or physical conduct when such conduct creates a hostile environment 
by being sufficiently severe or pervasive or objectively offensive that it 
interferes with, limits or denies the ability to participate in or benefit from the 
University’s educational programs, activities, or employment or  

B. Unwelcomed sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal 
or physical conduct of a sexual nature by a person having power or 
authority over another when  
i. Submission to such sexual conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly 

a term or condition of rating or evaluating an individual’s educational or 
employment progress, development, or performance  or 

ii. When submission to such conduct would be a condition for access to or 
receiving the benefits of any educational or employment program. 

3. Nonconsensual Sexual Contact: Nonconsensual Sexual Contact is any 
intentional sexual touching, however slight, with an animate or inanimate object, 
by a person upon another person that is without consent.  
A. Sexual Contact includes intentional contact with the breasts, buttock, groin, 

or genitals, or touching another with any of these body parts, or making 
another touch you or themselves with or on any of these body parts or  

B. Any other intentional bodily contact in a sexual manner  
4. Nonconsensual Sexual Intercourse: Nonconsensual Sexual Intercourse is 

any sexual intercourse, however slight, with any object, by a person upon 
another person that is without consent.  
A. Intercourse includes: Vaginal or anal penetration by a penis, object, tongue, 

or finger, and oral copulation (mouth to genital contact), no matter how slight 
the penetration or contact.  

5. Sexual Exploitation: Sexual exploitation occurs when one person takes 
nonconsensual or abusive sexual advantage of another person for their own 
advantage or benefit or for the advantage or benefit of anyone other than the 
person being exploited and the behavior does not constitute any other form of 



Page 3 of 33 
 

sexual misconduct. Examples of sexual exploitation include, but are not limited 
to, the following activities done without the consent of all participants: 
A. Invasion of sexual privacy; 
B. Prostituting another person 
C. Taping or recording of sexual activity; 
D. Going beyond the boundaries of consent to sexual activity (e.g., letting 

friends hide to watch personal sexual  engagement or  activity); 
E. Engaging in voyeurism; 
F. Knowingly transmitting an STI, STD, venereal disease or HIV to another 

person; 
G. Inducing another to expose their genitals; 
H. Nonconsensual distribution of intimate images; 
I. Use or distribution of drugs or alcohol with intent to facilitate sexual contact 

without consent (i.e., predatory drugs or alcohol). 
6. Intimate Partner Violence: Violence, threats of violence, intimidation and acts 

of coercion committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of 
a romantic or intimate nature with the recipient of the violent behavior.  

7. Stalking on the Basis of Sex/Gender: Following or engaging in a course of 
conduct with no legitimate purpose that makes another person reasonably 
concerned for their safety or would cause a reasonable person under the 
circumstances to be frightened, intimidated or emotionally distressed. 

8. Bullying on the Basis of Sex/Gender:  Repeated and/or severe aggressive 
behavior likely to intimidate intentionally hurt, control, or diminish another 
person, physically or mentally.  

 
II. RELEVANT DEFINITIONS  

1. Consent- The term “consent” used when describing different types of prohibited 
acts of sexual misconduct under UAH’s Sexual Misconduct Policy (such as 
sexual assault) means a clear willingness to participate in the sexual act (e.g., 
clear communication through words or actions).  Consent to a sexual act is not 
freely given if the individual is not able to give proper consent, or if consent is 
obtained by force, threats, deception, coercion, or positional authority.  A lack of 
resistance does not grant consent.  Previous consent does not grant consent to 
future sexual acts.  Consent can be withdrawn at any time during a sexual act. 
Inability to give consent may include, but is not limited to, situations where an 
individual is: 
A. Incapacitated due to alcohol, drugs, or other substances including, but not 

limited to, prescription medication. 
i. Determining consent when alcohol or other drugs are involved: In 

incidents involving alcohol, drugs, or other substances, the totality of the 
circumstances are analyzed to determine whether the use of alcohol, 
drugs, or other substances caused an inability to give consent.  Whether 
a Respondent knew or reasonably should have known of the 
Complainant’s ability to give consent will be considered.  Some factors 
considered to determine whether an individual is incapacitated due to 
alcohol, drugs, or other substances and therefore not able to give 



Page 4 of 33 
 

consent include, but are not limited to:  the use of force or threat of force, 
whether the parties were conscious or unconscious, whether the parties 
became sick due to intoxication, the parties’ ability to communicate 
and/or slurred speech, the parties’ coordination (e.g., ability to walk, 
dress/undress, perform simple tasks), and any other action that would be 
indicative of a level of cognitive functioning.  The mere presence of 
alcohol, drugs, or other substances does not equate to an inability to 
give consent. 

B. Unconscious, asleep, or in a state of shock. 
C. Under the age of consent as defined by the jurisdiction in which the act 

occurred, which, in Alabama, is less than 16 years of age. 
D. Mentally or physically impaired and not reasonably able to give consent. 

2. Force is the use of physical violence and/ or imposing on someone physically to 
gain sexual access.  Force also includes threats, intimidation (implied threats) 
and coercion that overcomes free will or resistances of that produces consent.  

3. Complainant—An individual who is reported to be or alleges that they were the 
victim of an offense that violates this Policy. 

4. Respondent—An individual who has been accused of an offense under this 
Policy or is reported to have violated this Policy. 

5. Student is anyone admitted to the University and registered for, taking, or 
pursuing undergraduate, graduate, or professional studies or courses at the 
University, both full-time and part-time, as well as persons attending classes on 
campus or off-campus. Persons who are not officially enrolled for a particular 
term but who have a continuing relationship with the University as well as 
persons participating in orientation are considered “students.” 

6. Employee—An employee is an individual who receives compensation for work 
or services for which the University has the right (whether or not it exercises the 
right) to supervise and control the manner of performance as well as the result 
of the work or service. For purposes of this Policy, University faculty and staff 
are considered “employees.” Volunteers and independent contractors are not 
considered “employees.” 
 

III. TITLE IX COORDINATOR AND  DEPUTY TITLE IX COORDINATORS  
Title IX Coordinator: The University has a designated Title IX Coordinator who shall 
oversee implementation and enforcement of this Policy, compliance with applicable 
rules and regulations, and coordination of communications between campus and 
community partners. The Title IX Coordinator may be reached at (256) 824-6899. The 
Title IX Coordinator’s office is currently located in the Student Services Building, SSB 
300F.  
 
Deputy Title IX Coordinators: Individuals located in Student Affairs (Dean of 
Students), Human Resources (Associate Vice President for Human Resources), and 
the Office of Diversity and Multicultural Affairs (Vice President for Diversity and 
Multicultural Affairs), who are trained to assist students and employees with complaints 
or concerns about sexual misconduct, and direct individuals to  resources they need. 
Deputy Title IX Coordinators report all complaints and concerns to the Title IX 



Page 5 of 33 
 

Coordinator, and work closely with the Title IX Coordinator in promptly responding to a 
person’s concerns. The Deputy Coordinators can help with interim measures that a 
complainant may need during the investigation of a complaint. The Deputy Title IX 
Coordinators may serve as designees for the Title IX Coordinator in any case where 
there is a conflict of interest that would prohibit the Title IX Coordinator from providing 
fair and impartial oversight. 
 
IV. AMNESTY FOR PERSONAL INGESTION OF ALCOHOL OR OTHER DRUGS 
The University of Alabama in Huntsville community views the safety of our students as a 
top priority. A student who is under the influence of alcohol or drugs at the time of an 
incident should not be reluctant to seek assistance for that reason. The University will 
not pursue disciplinary violations against a student (or against a witness) for their 
improper use of alcohol or drugs (e.g., underage drinking) if the student is making a 
good faith report of Prohibited Conduct and complies with any subsequent directives. 
The Title IX Coordinator (or designee) may, however, refer a student to substance 
abuse counseling depending on the circumstances of the individual situation. 

 
V. RETALIATION 
The University of Alabama in Huntsville prohibits retaliation by its employees, students, 
or agents against an individual who exercises their rights pursuant to any provision of 
Title IX, Title VII, the Campus SaVE Act, or this Policy. The University encourages 
students, faculty, and staff to express freely, responsibly, and in an orderly, opinions 
and feelings about any problem or complaint. 

1. Retaliation against persons who in good faith oppose or complain about 
Prohibited Conduct, illegal discrimination or harassment is prohibited.  

2. Retaliation is any action that has the effect of punishing a person for engaging in 
a legally protected activity, such as alleging Prohibited Conduct, harassment, or 
illegal discrimination, filing a complaint, assisting or participating in an 
investigation of such complaint, or advocating for on behalf of others’ Title IX or 
Title VII rights.  
 
Examples of retaliatory actions could include suspension, demotion, or 
termination in the employment context; lowering a grade or dismissing a student 
from a program; or maliciously and purposefully interfering with, threatening, or 
damaging the academic or professional career of another individual before, 
during, or after the investigation and resolution of a report of conduct prohibited 
by this Policy.  

3. This Policy prohibits retaliation in the form of harassment, intimidation, threats, 
or coercion, or in the form of any materially adverse harm that would dissuade a 
reasonable student, employee, or third party from filing a complaint or 
participating in a Prohibited Conduct related investigation.  
 

VI. REPORTING PROCEDURES, CONFIDENTIALITY, AND RIGHTS 
The University of Alabama in Huntsville takes allegations of Prohibited Conduct very 
seriously and is committed to taking immediate action to combat Prohibited Conduct, 
prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effects. The University will address all allegations 



Page 6 of 33 
 

of Prohibited Conduct with a prompt, thorough, and impartial inquiry to determine what 
occurred and to take appropriate steps to resolve the situation and determine an 
equitable resolution.  
 
Students, employees, volunteers, and visitors of the University who have experienced 
any form of sex discrimination, sexual harassment or sexual misconduct, are strongly 
encouraged to report the incident promptly to the Title IX Coordinator and/or appropriate 
Deputy Title IX Coordinator.  In addition, students, volunteers, and visitors of the 
University who have witnessed such conduct are encouraged to report the incident 
promptly. There is no time limit on reporting or filing complaints of violations of this 
Policy; however, prompt reporting is encouraged. Unreasonable delays in reporting may 
affect the investigation and evaluation of the report. 
 
In order to foster reporting and participation, the University may provide amnesty to 
Complainants and witnesses for minor student conduct violations ancillary to the 
incident. 
 
Mandatory Reporters: Any employee of the University, except as noted below, who 
becomes aware of sex discrimination as defined in this policy (including sexual 
harassment, sexual misconduct, stalking on the basis of sex, dating/intimate partner 
violence or sexual exploitation) is a Mandated Reporter, regardless of whether the 
recipient of the behavior is a student, employee, volunteer, child, or visitor of the 
University. 
 
A mandated Reporter is required to report the information promptly to the Title IX 
Coordinator or appropriate Deputy Title IX Coordinator. The Mandated Report must be 
made regardless of whether the person reporting the information to the Mandated 
Reporter requests confidentiality and regardless of how the Mandated Reporter 
becomes aware of the offensive behavior (personal observation, direct information from 
the subject of the behavior, indirect information from a third party, etc.). If the 
Complainant requests confidentiality or that the charges not be pursued, the Mandated 
Reporter should warn the Complainant that, at this stage in the process, the Mandated 
Reporter must report all known information to the Title IX Coordinator. 
 
Employees with a Legal Obligation or Privilege of Confidentiality: Employees with 
a legal obligation or privilege of confidentiality (including health care providers, 
counselors, lawyers, and their associated staff) are not considered Mandated Reporters 
and are not required to report when the information is learned in the course of a 
confidential communication. If the information is not learned in the course of confidential 
communication (for example, behavior is observed in class) then the employee has the 
same obligation as a Mandated Reporter. 
 
Designated Confidential Employees: Consistent with the law and upon approval from 
the University Office of Counsel, the University may also designate non-professional 
counselors or advocates as confidential employees for purposes of this policy and, 
therefore, excluded from the definition of Mandated Reporters. However, these 



Page 7 of 33 
 

individuals are required once per month to report to the Title IX Coordinator aggregate, 
non-personally identifiable information regarding incidents of sex discrimination reported 
to them. The aggregate data report should contain general information about individual 
incidents of sexual violence such as the nature, date, time, and general location of the 
incident. Confidentiality in this context is not the same as privilege under the law. 
 
The University is not deemed to have notice of alleged Prohibited Conduct based on a 
report to these offices. A Complainant who wishes to receive accommodations and 
support measures, but who desires strict confidentiality should contact the University 
Counseling Center. 
 
Contact Information for UAHPD and Title IX Coordinator/Deputy Coordinators:  
Contact information for the Title IX Coordinator, Deputy Title IX Coordinators, and 
UAHPD for students, employees, and campus visitors can be found below and on the 
Title IX website at http://www.uah.edu/title-ix.  
 

1. Reporting to Law Enforcement: The University encourages individuals to report 
immediately acts or threats of sexual assault, intimate partner (dating/domestic) 
violence, sexual exploitation, stalking, or any dangerous behavior to The 
University of Alabama in Huntsville Police Department (UAHPD) or local police 
authorities. Law enforcement agencies can be contacted by calling Emergency 
911. UAHPD may be contacted at the Intermodal Facility (IMF), Room 123, 501 
John Wright Drive Huntsville, AL 35899; http://www.uah.edu/police; (256) 824-
6596 (nonemergency)  
 
The Title IX Coordinator/Deputy Title IX Coordinators are available to assist a 
Complainant with reporting to UAHPD or local law enforcement; however, a 
Complainant is not required to report to law enforcement. The University may not 
in all cases receive notice of an alleged incident following a report to local law 
enforcement (e.g., the Huntsville Police Department, Madison County Sheriff’s 
Office, etc.). Therefore, to enable the University to assist a Complainant with 
interim accommodations/measures and support services, individuals who have 
contacted law enforcement are encouraged also to report to the Title IX 
Coordinator/ Deputy Title IX Coordinators.  

2. Reporting to Title IX Coordinator/ Deputy Title IX Coordinators: In addition to the 
Title IX website identified above, contact information for Title IX Coordinator/ 
Deputy Title IX Coordinators is listed below: 
 
 Title IX Coordinator: 

 (256) 824-6899 
  Deputy Title IX Coordinator (Students)  

 Dean of Students  
 (256) 824-6700 

 Deputy Title IX Coordinator (Faculty)  
Vice President for Diversity and Multicultural Affairs 
(256) 824-4600 



Page 8 of 33 
 

 Deputy Title IX Coordinator (Staff)  
Associate Vice President for Human Resources 
(256) 824-6545 

 
Confidentiality/Privacy:  Conversations with Mandated Reporters are kept as 
confidential as possible and shared only on a need to know basis in order to assist in 
the active review, investigation, or resolution of the report and related issues. This 
confidentiality extends to the Complainant, Respondent, and other necessary parties. 
The University will maintain confidentiality as much as possible any in the provision of 
accommodations or interim protective measures provided to the Complainant, 
Respondent, and other necessary parties if maintaining such confidentiality will not 
impair the ability of the University to provide accommodations or protective measures. 
 
University employees assisting with a Title IX matter are expected to safeguard private 
information in accordance with applicable laws (including, but not limited to, FERPA, 
HIPAA, and other privacy laws).  
 
Complainants are advised that requests for confidentiality may limit the University’s 
efforts to end the inappropriate conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remediate its 
effects. However, information about incidents of alleged Prohibited Conduct must be 
shared with relevant administrators if the Title IX Coordinator determines that the 
University needs to take action to provide a safe and non-discriminatory environment for 
the entire campus community. Relevant factors that will be considered include, but are 
not limited to, credible evidence of Respondent’s prior Prohibited Conduct, risk of 
additional misconduct, and the use of a weapon. In all cases, the request for 
confidentiality by the person initiating the conversation is given full consideration. 
 
All verified and unverified confidential reports of sexual offenses that meet the Clery 
reporting criteria as determined by UAHPD and that are made to the University 
Counseling and Health Center are included in UAH campus crime statistics. Crimes 
reported to professional counselors, physicians, mental health professionals, or others 
to whom a confidentiality privilege applies by law are not included unless the 
Complainant has chosen to report separately to a Campus Security Authority as defined 
by federal law. 
 
Anonymous reports may be made via Charger 360 http://www.uah.edu/Charger360 . 
Any investigation of an anonymous report will depend, in part, on the extent of the 
information provided. 
 
Rights of Complainants and Respondents: In addition to all other rights conferred by 
this Policy, the parties have the following rights: 
 

1. Complainant’s Rights  
Students or employees reporting potential sexual assault, domestic violence, dating 
violence, or stalking have the following rights: 

 To be informed of available options for making a report; 



Page 9 of 33 
 

 To be advised of the Complainant’s right to file a criminal complaint and a 
Title IX complaint with UAH simultaneously and to be advised of the 
University’s prohibition on retaliation against an individual who exercises 
their rights under Title IX, Title VII, the Campus SaVE Act, or this Policy; 

 To decline to notify law enforcement authorities in cases of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking cases; 

 To be assisted by campus authorities, if requested, when reporting a crime 
to law enforcement; 

 To have equal access to educational programs and activities and interim 
protective measures, as appropriate.  

 To receive information regarding University and community support 
resources (including, but not limited to, modification of academic, living, 
transportation, or working situations to avoid a hostile environment, and 
available health and mental health counseling, victim advocacy, safety 
planning, information about possible legal assistance, visa and immigration 
assistance, student financial aid, and, if applicable, disability 
accommodations). If the Complainant requests such accommodations or 
protective measures and if they are reasonably available, they will be 
provided regardless of whether the Complainant chooses to report the crime 
to campus police or local law enforcement; 

 To request from the Title IX Coordinator that the University issue and 
enforce a no contact directive; 

 To a timely, thorough, and impartial investigation;  
 If a student, to be accompanied by a support person/adviser at all University 

proceedings relevant to the investigation and hearing process, subject to the 
limitations outlined in this policy;  

 Subject to the limitations outlined in this policy, to be notified of significant 
actions and proceedings relevant to the University investigation and hearing 
process; 

 To be notified of the appeal process; 
 To be notified in writing when final results become available (in crimes of 

violence or Title IX Prohibited Conduct cases);  
 To have access to published policies regarding Prohibited Conduct and 

University disciplinary procedures, including the possible range of sanctions; 
and 

 To be notified that information and materials the University obtains during its 
investigation into allegations of Prohibited Conduct may be disclosed to law 
enforcement in response to a valid subpoena. 

 
2. Respondent’s Rights  

 To a general notice of the allegations, or Code of Conduct charges (if 
applicable),and an opportunity to respond to allegations, and access to 
policy statements regarding the investigation process and possible 
sanctions; 

 To receive information regarding University and community support 
resources (including but not limited to modification of academic, living, 



Page 10 of 33 
 

transportation, or working situations to avoid a hostile environment, and 
available health and mental health counseling, information about possible 
legal assistance, advocacy, safety planning, visa and immigration 
assistance, student financial aid, and, if applicable disability 
accommodations); 

 To request from the Title IX Coordinator that the University issue and 
enforce a no contact directive; 

 To a timely, thorough, and impartial investigation; 
 If a student, to be accompanied by a support person/adviser at all University 

proceedings relevant to the investigation and hearing process, subject to the 
limitations outlined in this policy; 

 Subject to the limitations outlined in this policy, to be notified of significant 
actions and proceedings relevant to the University investigation and hearing 
process; 

 To be notified of the appeal process and whether an appeal is available; 
 To be notified in writing when final results become available (in crimes of 

violence or Title IX Prohibited Conduct cases);  
 To have access to published policies regarding Prohibited Conduct and 

University disciplinary procedures, including the possible range of sanctions; 
 To be notified that the Respondent is not required to make a statement or 

otherwise provide information relevant to the investigation. However, the 
investigation will continue and a decision regarding responsibility may be 
made based on the available statements and evidence; and 

 To be notified that information and materials the University obtains during its 
investigation into allegations of Prohibited Conduct may be disclosed to law 
enforcement in response to a valid subpoena 
 

VII. PROCESSING OF A COMPLAINT 
Complaints of Prohibited Conduct will receive prompt attention according to the timeline 
outlined in this policy. Complaints may be resolved through the informal or formal 
procedures described below, and appropriate action will be taken. The choice of an 
informal or formal resolution rests with the Complainant. However, if the Title IX 
Coordinator in consultation with the Deputy Title IX Coordinator determines that the 
matter is sufficiently grave because it seems to be part of a persistent pattern,  due to 
the nature of the alleged offense, or because the Complainant seeks to have a sanction 
imposed, then the Title IX Coordinator may initiate a formal procedure, or take other 
appropriate action. 
 
If a complaint is filed with the Title IX Coordinator that is not subject to this Policy, the 
Title IX Coordinator may refer the complaint to the appropriate University official. A 
determination by the Title IX Coordinator, in consultation with the Deputy Title IX 
Coordinator, that a complaint is not subject to this Policy is not open for appeal. 
 

1. Preliminary Inquiry: The Title IX Coordinator or appropriate Deputy Title IX 
Coordinator may conduct a preliminary inquiry to determine if the allegations fall 
under this Policy or if a formal investigation is warranted. The Title IX Coordinator 



Page 11 of 33 
 

or appropriate Deputy Title IX Coordinator may speak with parties, witnesses, 
and/or gather other information to make a determination regarding whether to 
proceed with an investigation. If there is insufficient information to move forward 
with an investigation, the Title IX Coordinator, in consultation with the appropriate 
Deputy Title IX Coordinator, will close the investigation and will not issue a finding. 
The Title IX Coordinator or appropriate Deputy Title IX Coordinator may offer 
resources and/or interim measures as it deems appropriate based on the 
information learned in the preliminary inquiry. The University reserves the right to 
reopen an inquiry or conduct a full investigation at any time. 
 

2. Informal/ Voluntary Resolution: If the complaint is resolved informally, no record of 
the complaint will be entered in the Respondent’s personnel file or Office of 
Student Conduct record. However, the Title IX Coordinator’s Office will record the 
facts of the complaint and the resolution achieved. Options for informal resolution 
of a complaint include: 
 
• The Complainant is not required to, but may, if they deem it appropriate and no 
safety risk is posed, attempt to resolve the matter directly with the Respondent 
and report back to the Title IX Coordinator/ Deputy Title IX Coordinators; 
• The Title IX Coordinator/ Deputy Title IX Coordinators may notify the Respondent 
of the complaint, paying appropriate attention to the need to maintain 
confidentiality. Title IX Coordinator/ Deputy Title IX Coordinators may take 
whatever steps short of disciplinary sanctions that they deem appropriate to effect 
an informal resolution acceptable to both parties; or 
• The Complainant and Respondent may participate in a mediation. Mediation is 
not an option for allegations of sexual assault or intimate partner (dating/domestic) 
violence; 
• A party may end an informal proceeding at any time and move to the formal 
process outlined below. 
 

3. Formal Investigation and Resolution Procedures: For allegations of Prohibited 
Conduct covered by this Policy, the University is committed to providing an 
investigation and resolution process that is prompt, fair, impartial, sensitive, 
supportive, and respectful to the rights and needs of all parties involved from the 
initial investigation to the final result. All meetings, discussions, and/or hearings 
that may occur as part of this formal process are closed to the general public. 
 

A. Time Frames 
Reasonable efforts will be made to arrive at an initial investigative finding 
as outlined herein (excluding hearings and appeals) within 60 University 
business days following the receipt of a formal complaint, unless the 
University determines, in its sole discretion, that additional time is 
required. The University will provide the parties with periodic updates as it 
deems appropriate and with timely notice of meetings at which either or 
both the Complainant and Respondent may be present, and will provide 



Page 12 of 33 
 

both parties with timely and equal access to any information that is utilized 
in the decision-making process.  
 
Extenuating circumstances could require the process to extend beyond 
the time frames described above, and the University will determine in its 
discretion if such circumstances exist and will notify the Complainant and 
Respondent of the delay and the reason for the delay. Potential reasons 
for requiring additional time for resolution of the process include, but are 
not limited to, the complexity of the investigation, the severity and extent of 
the alleged conduct, University closings, breaks, holidays, summer terms, 
lack of access to witnesses, and factors outside the University’s control. 

B. Equal Opportunity and Access 
 To the extent not already provided for by existing disciplinary procedures, 
the Complainant and the Respondent are entitled to the same 
opportunities to be heard, to present evidence, and to access pertinent 
information during the investigation and resolution process as appropriate. 
Both the Complainant and Respondent will be updated on the status of the 
investigation and the outcome of any proceeding in an equitable manner. 
Accommodations and protective measures may be taken to help protect 
the health and/or safety of the Complainant, Respondent, and/or 
witnesses. 

C. Standard of Proof  
The standard used to determine whether the Respondent is responsible 
for a Prohibited Conduct allegation is preponderance of the evidence, 
which means more likely than not the alleged conduct occurred and said 
conduct is in violation of this Policy. 

D. Investigation Procedure 
If, following the preliminary inquiry, a Complainant or the University wants 
to pursue a formal investigation and there is sufficient information to move 
forward, then the Title IX Coordinator will send the Complainant and the 
Respondent a written Notice of Investigation, which constitutes the formal 
charge. The Notice of Investigation will contain a summary of the 
allegation or conduct at issue, the range of potential violations under the 
Title IX Policy, and the range of potential sanctions according to Faculty, 
Staff, or Student Policy. Once the Notice of Investigation has been 
delivered to the parties, the Investigation phase begins.  
 

The investigation procedure followed for a formal complaint covered by this Policy is 
determined by the role(s) of the Respondent’s association with the University: 

 
i. Complaint against student Respondent 

Complaints wherein a student is the Respondent are investigated by the 
Deputy Title IX Coordinator for Students in conjunction with the Office of 
Student Ethics& Education. All matters involving allegations of Prohibited 
Conduct by a student will be handled under the Code of Student Conduct 
in a manner consistent with the requirements, accommodations, 



Page 13 of 33 
 

procedures, and processes outlined in this Policy. Hearings and appeals 
for complaints against a student involving Prohibited Conduct are 
discussed in detail below. 

ii. Complaint against faculty Respondent 
Complaints wherein a faculty member is the Respondent are investigated 
by the Deputy Title IX Coordinator for Faculty. Following the investigation, 
the Deputy Title IX Coordinator for Faculty will provide a report to the 
applicable decision-making official. A conclusion by the applicable 
decision-making official that Prohibited Conduct has occurred shall subject 
the Respondent to appropriate disciplinary sanctions. A conclusion that 
Prohibited Conduct has not occurred will in most cases end the process, 
unless the Complainant has the right to appeal, which only exists if the 
Respondent has an appeal right.  

iii. Complaint against staff Respondent  
Complaints wherein a staff member is the Respondent are investigated by 
the Deputy Title IX Coordinator for Staff alone or in conjunction with 
human resource partners. Following the investigation, the Deputy Title IX 
Coordinator for Staff will provide a report to the applicable decision-
making official. A conclusion by the applicable decision-making official that 
Prohibited Conduct has occurred shall subject the Respondent to 
appropriate disciplinary sanctions. A conclusion that that Prohibited 
Conduct has not occurred will in most cases end the process, unless the 
Complainant has the right to appeal, which only exists if the Respondent 
has an appeal right. 

iv. Complaint against community member/third party/campus visitor Respondent 
Consistent with the jurisdiction of this Policy, in instances where a 
complaint is received against a community member/third party/campus 
visitor (not student or employee) related to alleged Prohibited Conduct 
occurring on campus or at any location involving a University-sponsored 
activity or event, the Title IX Coordinator (or a designated investigator) 
may conduct an investigation and make a determination regarding 
whether the conduct in question is in violation of University policy or law. A 
conclusion by the Title IX Coordinator that Prohibited Conduct in violation 
of University policy or the law has occurred may subject the community 
member/third party/campus visitor to disciplinary action. A conclusion by 
the Title IX Coordinator that Prohibited Conduct has not occurred will in 
most cases end the process, as no appeal right exists for the community 
member/third party/campus visitor, and therefore does not exist for the 
Complainant in this situation. 
 

E. Investigation Process  
When initiated, the investigation process will be thorough and impartial, as well as 
equitable with regard to the rights of the Complainant and Respondent. The goal of 
the investigation is to determine if conduct occurred in violation of University policy 
and, if so, to end the specific misconduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy the 
effects on the Complainant and the University community. 



Page 14 of 33 
 

 
Discussion with Complainant: The assigned investigator will conduct an initial 
meeting with the Complainant.  The investigator will obtain as much information as 
possible during the initial meeting about the alleged incident, including witness 
names and any available evidence. The Complainant may, at any time during the 
investigation process, request that the investigation end and the University will try to 
accommodate this request, which may result in a finding that the Respondent is not 
responsible for the alleged conduct. However, if the alleged conduct presents an 
issue of overall campus safety, the Title IX Coordinator in consultation with the 
appropriate Deputy Title IX Coordinator may continue with the investigation without 
the Complainant’s consent. 
 
Discussion with Respondent: The allegations, subject to confidentiality concerns, will 
be discussed with the Respondent. The assigned investigator and the Respondent 
will discuss a Respondent’s rights as well as available University resources for 
support while the investigation is pending. The Respondent will be given the 
opportunity to respond to the allegations and offer evidence and/or 
potential witnesses. The Respondent is not required to make a statement or 
otherwise provide information relevant to the investigation. However, the 
investigation will continue and a decision regarding responsibility may be made 
based on the available statements and evidence. Further, information and materials 
the University obtains during its investigation into allegations of Prohibited 
Conduct may be disclosed to law enforcement in response to a valid subpoena. 

 
Other Evidence: The assigned investigator will make reasonable attempts to contact 
and interview individuals who are identified as witnesses with information relevant to 
the allegations of Prohibited Conduct. The investigator may elect not to interview 
witnesses whose sole purpose is to provide character information. The investigator 
will make reasonable attempts to obtain other relevant evidence available from the 
parties, witnesses, or other University departments. 

 
At the conclusion of the investigation, the investigator will prepare a report (the 
“Investigative Report”) summarizing and analyzing the relevant facts determined 
through the investigation, with reference to any supporting documentation or 
statements. The final Investigative Report will provide a summary of the 
Investigator’s impressions, including context for the evidence.  However, before the 
report is finalized, the Complainant and Respondent will be given the opportunity to 
review a draft Investigation Report, which will not include the Investigative Finding, 
and may be presented in redacted format. The parties will not receive an electronic 
or printed copy, nor may they photograph or copy the draft Investigative Report, but 
they will be permitted to take notes on the content. 

 
At the conclusion of the investigation, the investigator will prepare a report (the 
“Investigative Report”) summarizing and analyzing the relevant facts determined 



Page 15 of 33 
 

through the investigation, with reference to any supporting documentation or 
statements. The final Investigative Report will provide a summary of the 
Investigator’s impressions, including context for the evidence.  However, before the 
report is finalized, the Complainant and Respondent will be given the opportunity to 
review a draft Investigation Report, which will not include the Investigative Finding, 
and may be presented in redacted format. The parties will not receive an electronic 
or printed copy, nor may they photograph or copy the draft Investigative Report, but 
they will be permitted to take notes on the content.  

 
A Complainant and Respondent may submit any additional comment or information 
to the investigator within five (5) business days of the date of the notice of the 
opportunity to review the draft Investigation Report. This is the final opportunity for 
the parties to identify any additional information or witnesses. In the absence of good 
cause, information reasonably discoverable that is not provided to the investigator at 
this stage will not be considered by the investigator or any other reviewing party.  

 
The investigator will provide a copy of the final Investigative Report to the Title IX 
Coordinator and appropriate decision making official. The Title IX Coordinator and/or 
appropriate decision making official may request that the Investigator conduct 
additional interviews and/or gather additional information 
 

VIII. RESOLUTION PROCEDURES FOR STUDENTS 
Upon the conclusion of the investigation, the Dean of Students/ Deputy Title IX 
Coordinator for Students will meet with the accused student and determine 
responsibility. If the student accepts responsibility, the Dean of Students will assign 
sanctions deemed appropriate. 
 

1.  Acceptance of Responsibility  
The acceptance of responsibility shall constitute the charged student’s waiver of 
a formal hearing and right of appeal. The student retains the right only to appeal 
the severity of the sanction 

2. Formal Disposition by Hearing  
When a charged student denies responsibility and the case has not been 
previously dismissed, a hearing shall be scheduled no fewer than 10 University 
Business days after the date of the Initial Review. In cases of sexual misconduct, 
the Formal Hearing will be heard by the Student Conduct Board.  

a) Notice of Hearing. The notification of hearing shall be in writing and include: 
i. The date, time, and location of the Student Conduct Board hearing; 
ii. Reference to  policies/procedures , his/her rights and the hearing 

procedures 
iii. A reasonable date, time, and location for a Pre-Hearing Meeting with the 

Dean of Students ( or Designee), during which the student may review a 
potential witness list and all materials to be used by the University in his or 
her case, which shall be no fewer than three academic days prior to the 
hearing. If the student chooses to review the materials provided at the 
Pre-Hearing Meeting, the charged student shall allow the University also 



Page 16 of 33 
 

to review all of his or her materials and witnesses to be used in the case. 
Any materials or witnesses not provided at the Pre-Hearing Meeting by 
either the University or the student may not be used at any time thereafter 
during the student disciplinary proceedings; 

iv. The charged student shall have the opportunity to challenge the 
impartiality of a Student Conduct Board member within three academic 
days of notification. In the event that a student has opted not to challenge 
the impartiality of a Student Conduct Board member prior to the allotted 
three academic days, the assigned Student Conduct Board member shall 
remain as scheduled. The student shall state in writing the basis for such 
challenge.  

b) Structure of the Student  Conduct Board  
The Student Conduct Board shall consist of the following persons: four 
faculty members/staff members, and one hearing panel chair who shall be 
a faculty member/staff member. Faculty members/staff members are 
appointed by the University President for a two-year term. 

c) Hearing Procedures  
i. The hearing is not a legal proceeding. Formal rules of process, 

procedure, and evidence do not apply. 
ii. Objectives of the Hearing. Requisite levels of due process and 

fairness will be provided to all participants during these proceedings. 
The hearing shall have the following objectives 

 Inform the student of the charges 
 Give the accused student an opportunity to respond to the 

charges 
 Review the facts of the case 
 Determine if any violation of the Student Code of Conduct 

was committed 
 Recommend any sanction(s) to be imposed based upon the 

facts, as determined at the hearing. 
 

iii. Witnesses. Witnesses at hearings will not be sworn in. Each witness 
will be admonished that he or she is required to tell the truth. A 
student giving untrue testimony at a hearing is subject to disciplinary 
charges. 

iv. Information. Pertinent records, exhibits, and written statements may 
be accepted as information for consideration by the Hearing Officer 
or the Student Conduct Board at the discretion of the Chair. 

v. Burdens of Proof. The Student Conduct Board shall determine 
whether it is more likely than not that the accused student violated 
the Student Code of Conduct by a preponderance of evidence. 

vi. Advisor. The charged student may choose one advisor to be present 
at the hearing. The advisor can be chosen from a group of faculty or 
staff members who have been specifically trained to serve in the 
advisor role. The student may also choose any university or non-
university person as his/her own advisor. The student may select, at 



Page 17 of 33 
 

his or her own expense, an attorney to serve as his/her advisor. The 
advisor or attorney cannot present statements, arguments, or 
question witnesses or participate directly in any Student Conduct 
Board Hearing or the Initial Review.  

 Members of the Student Conduct Board may not serve as a 
student’s advisor at the hearing. 

 The charged student must name his/her advisor during the 
Pre-Hearing Meeting with the Dean of Students (or 
Designee). 

vii. Hearings 
 All hearings before the Student Conduct Board will be digitally 

recorded by the University. That recording will serve as the only 
official record of these proceedings and shall be the property of 
the University. No other recordings are permitted. Deliberations 
shall not be recorded. 

 The following is a guide to the format of events for hearings. 
The Board may change the order if necessary. The Board may 
question any party or witness directly  

o Review of Hearing procedure 
o Reading of Charges by the Dean of Students. 
o Deliberation by the Board (not taped). 

viii. The Student Conduct Board or Hearing Officer will find the student 
“Responsible” or “Not Responsible” for each of the alleged violations 
listed on the Notice of Charges. 

ix. If the charged student fails to appear at the scheduled hearing (after 
proper notice), the Student Conduct Board will review the case and 
make a decision without the charged student present. Consideration 
will be given for nonappearance due to extenuating circumstances. 
The charged student relinquishes the right to appeal the decision of 
the Student Conduct Board or Hearing Officer and retains the right 
only to appeal the severity of the sanction if the charged student fails 
to appear at the schedule hearing.  

x. The Deputy Title IX Coordinator for Students shall send a 
notification in writing (Notice of Decision and Sanction) to the 
student of the decision of the Student Conduct Board or Hearing 
Office and the sanction(s) imposed within five academic days of the 
conclusion of the hearing.  

d) Appeals  
The accused student may appeal the finding of the Student Conduct Board or 
Hearing Officer (Responsible/Not responsible) or the sanctions imposed to the 
Vice President for Student Affairs 

i. Standards for Appeal  
 Failure to receive the due process required by law. 
 Severity of the sanction. 
 New material or information that could not be discovered at the 

time of the hearing. 



Page 18 of 33 
 

ii. All appeals must be submitted electronically or in printed format within 
five academic days of the date of the Notice of Decision/Sanction to the 
Vice President for Student Affairs for consideration. All appeals must 
specify the basis for the appeal. 

iii. The burden of proof for the appeal rests with the charged student. 
iv. The student’s pre-decision status will remain unchanged pending the 

appeal determination by the Vice President for Student Affairs, except 
where the Vice President for Student Affairs, determines that the safety, 
health or general welfare of the student or the university community is 
involved. 

v. After considering the appeal, the Vice President for Student Affairs may 
reopen the hearing, order a new hearing with a new Conduct Board, 
uphold the prior decision and/or revise the sanction. The Vice President 
for Academic Affairs shall provide the student written notice of his/her 
decision within five academic days. 

vi. The appeal determination of Vice President for Student Affairs is final 
and binding on all parties. There are no further appeals within the 
University except in cases where the sanction of suspension or 
expulsion has been imposed, in which case, a final appeal can be heard 
by the University President. 

e) Sanctions  
Sanctions imposed against students are dictated by the Code of Student 
Conduct. A student found responsible for violation of this Policy is subject to 
sanctions up to and including expulsion from the University. Lesser disciplinary 
sanctions include warning, probation, loss of privileges, no contact order, 
campus ban/no trespass warning from UAHPD, residence hall suspension or 
transfer/expulsion, educational discretionary sanction(s) as deemed 
appropriate. 

 
IX. RESOLUTION PROCEDURES FOR FACULTY 
Upon the conclusion of the investigation, the Deputy Title IX Coordinator for Faculty/ 
assigned Investigator will prepare a report (the “Investigative Report”) summarizing and 
analyzing the relevant facts determined through the investigation, with reference to any 
supporting documentation or statements.  
 
The Deputy Title IX Coordinator will provide an Investigative Report to the Provost (or 
Designee) and Title IX Coordinator. This report may include the Deputy Title IX 
Coordinator’s/ Investigator’s observations regarding the credibility of the Complainant, 
the Respondent, and any witnesses interviewed. 
 
The Provost (or Designee) and/ or Title IX Coordinator may request that the Deputy 
Title IX Coordinator conduct additional interviews and/or gather additional information. 
The Provost (or Designee) can, but is not required to, meet with and question the 
Deputy Title IX Coordinator for Faculty to clarify information in the Investigative Report. 
The Respondent may choose to admit responsibility for all or part of the alleged policy 
violations at any point in the process. If the Respondent admits responsibility, in whole 



Page 19 of 33 
 

or in part, the Provost (or Designee) will render a finding that the individual is in violation 
of University policy for the admitted conduct.  
 
For any disputed violations, the Provost (or Designee) will render a finding utilizing the 
preponderance of the evidence standard. The findings and recommended sanctions are 
subject to appeal.  
 
The Provost (or Designee) will inform the Respondent and the Complainant of the 
finding of each of the alleged policy violations and the finding on sanctions. The 
notifications will be made in writing and will be timely delivered either by email to the 
Party’s University-issued email account or other delivery means without significant time 
delay between notifications. 
  
A determination as set forth above that a violation of this policy has occurred shall 
subject a faculty member to appropriate disciplinary action subject to the current Faculty 
Handbook Section 7.14 Disciplinary Policies and Procedures.  Appropriate sanctions 
will be based on factors such as  
 

1. The nature, severity of, and circumstances surrounding the violation; 
2. The disciplinary history of the Respondent; 
3. The need for sanctions/remedial actions to bring an end to the discrimination, 

harassment and/or retaliation; 
4. The need for sanctions/remedial actions to prevent the future recurrence of 

discrimination, harassment and/or retaliation; and 
5. The need to remedy the effects of the discrimination, harassment and/or 

retaliation on the Complainant and the University community. 
 
Possible sanctions may include, but are not limited to, a no contact order, verbal 
counseling, written counseling or warning, official reprimand, mandatory counseling, 
mandatory attendance at the Employee Assistance Program, educational assignment, 
fines, restitution, paid or unpaid administrative leave, release from teaching duties, 
reassignment of responsibilities, loss of ability to travel abroad or apply for sabbatical 
leaves, ineligibility to receive promotion, suspension of annual merit increase, decrease 
in salary, suspension, demotion, transfer and/or reassignment of duties, revocation of 
tenure, termination of employment, campus ban/no trespass warning from UAHPD, 
prohibition on further employment or volunteer activity at the University, loss of 
University benefits for retirees and referral to proper law enforcement authorities for 
prosecution.  
 
In cases involving Faculty respondents, the parties have the right to appeal the 
Provost’s determination and the sanctions imposed by the Provost to the President. 
The University’s determination as to whether the respondent’s conduct violated the Title 
IX Policy will be presumed to have been reached reasonably and appropriately, by a 
preponderance of the evidence. Therefore, an appeal is available only on the following 
grounds: 

1. Materially insufficient evidence to support the Investigator’s findings. 



Page 20 of 33 
 

2. The disciplinary sanction imposed is materially disproportionate to the 
violation of the Title IX Policy. 

3. The discovery of new, relevant evidence, that was unavailable to the 
appealing party during the investigation that could reasonably affect the 
outcome of the complaint. 

4. Significant prejudicial bias on the part of the Investigator. 
 

Any appeal must be in writing and should be filed with the Title IX Coordinator within ten 
(10) calendar days of the date of receipt of the Provost’s final decision. The appeal must 
be in writing and contain the following: 

 Name of the Complainant 
 Name of the Respondent 
 A statement of the determination of the Complaint, including corrective action if 

any 
 A detailed statement of the basis for the appeal including the specific facts, 

circumstances, and argument in support of it 
 Requested action, if any 

 
The Title IX Coordinator may accept a late submission under extenuating 
circumstances. The President will make a final decision within 30 University business 
days of receipt of the appeal by the Title IX Coordinator and may take any and all 
actions that the President determines to be in the interest of a fair and just decision. The 
decision of the President will be final. The President shall issue a written statement of 
the resolution of the appeal, including any changes made to the Provost’s previous 
written determination. The written statement shall be provided to the Complainant, 
Respondent, and the Title IX Coordinator within ten (10) days of the resolution.   
 
X. RESOLUTION PROCEDURES FOR STAFF 
Upon the conclusion of the investigation, the assigned investigator will prepare a report 
(the “Investigative Report”) summarizing and analyzing the relevant facts determined 
through the investigation, with reference to any supporting documentation or 
statements. 
 
The Investigator will provide an Investigative Report to the Deputy Title IX Coordinator 
for Staff, Title IX Coordinator, and Cognizant Vice President. This report may include 
the Investigators’ observations regarding the credibility of the Complainant, the 
Respondent, and any witnesses interviewed. 
The Deputy Title IX Coordinator in consultation with the Cognizant Vice President can, 
but is not required to, meet with and question the Investigator to clarify information in 
the investigation report. The Respondent may choose to admit responsibility for all or 
part of the alleged policy violations at any point in the process. If the Respondent admits 
responsibility, in whole or in part, the Deputy Title IX Coordinator in consultation with the 
Cognizant Vice President will render a finding that the individual is in violation of 
University policy for the admitted conduct.  
 
 



Page 21 of 33 
 

For any disputed violations, the Deputy Title IX Coordinator for Staff in consultation with 
the Cognizant Vice President will render a finding utilizing the preponderance of the 
evidence standard. The findings and recommended sanctions are subject to appeal. 
 
 
The Deputy Title IX Coordinator for Staff will inform the Respondent and the 
Complainant of the finding of each of the alleged policy violations and the finding on 
sanctions, without significant time delay between notifications. The Notification will be 
made in writing and will be delivered by email to the Party’s University-issued email 
account.  
 
A determination as set forth above that a violation of this Policy has occurred shall 
subject a staff member to appropriate disciplinary action pursuant to the current 
Staff/Employee Handbook. The University has adopted a philosophy of progressive 
discipline. However, one violation of this Policy could result in termination of 
employment. Appropriate sanctions will be based on such factors as severity, 
frequency, and degree of deviation from expectations in this Policy. 
 
Possible sanctions may include, but are not limited to, a no contact order, verbal 
counseling, written counseling or warning, official reprimand, mandatory counseling, 
mandatory attendance at the Employee Assistance Program, educational assignment, 
fines, restitution, paid or unpaid administrative leave, reassignment of responsibilities, 
ineligibility to receive raise or promotion, suspension of annual merit increase, decrease 
in salary, suspension, demotion, transfer, termination of employment, campus ban/no 
trespass warning from UAHPD, prohibition on further employment at the University, loss 
of University benefits for retirees, and referral to proper law enforcement authorities for 
prosecution. 
 
The University’s determination as to whether the respondent’s conduct violated the Title 
IX Policy will be presumed to have been reached reasonably and appropriately, by a 
preponderance of the evidence standard. Therefore, an appeal is available only on the 
following grounds: 

1. Materially insufficient evidence to support the Investigator’s findings. 
2. The disciplinary sanction imposed is materially disproportionate to the 

violation of the Title IX Policy. 
3. The discovery of new, relevant evidence, that was unavailable to the 

appealing party during the investigation that could reasonably affect the 
outcome of the complaint 

4. Significant prejudicial bias on the part of the Investigator. 
 
Any appeal must be in writing and should be filed with the Title IX Coordinator within ten 
(10) calendar days of the date of receipt of the Deputy Title IX Coordinator for Staff and 
Cognizant Vice President’s decision. The appeal must be in writing and contain the 
following: 

 Name of the complainant 
 Name of the respondent 



Page 22 of 33 
 

 A statement of the determination of the complaint, including corrective action if 
any 

 A detailed statement of the basis for the appeal including the specific facts, 
circumstances, and argument in support of it 

 Requested action, if any 
 
The Title IX Coordinator may accept a late submission under extenuating 
circumstances. The President (or President Designee) will make a final decision within 
30 business days of receipt of the appeal and may take any and all actions that the 
President determines to be in the interest of a fair and just decision. The decision of the 
President will be final. The President shall issue a written statement of the resolution of 
the appeal, including any changes made to the Deputy Title IX Coordinator for Staff and 
Cognizant Vice President’s previous written determination. The written statement shall 
be provided to the Complainant, Respondent, and the Title IX Coordinator within ten 
(10) days of the resolution.   
 
XI. ACCOMMODATIONS, INTERIM PROTECTIVE MEASURES, AND SUPPORT 

SERVICES 
For all reports of Prohibited Conduct, the University will take prompt and reasonable 
action to provide support to all parties involved.  A Complainant is not required to file a 
formal complaint, report the incident to law enforcement, or pursue criminal charges to 
receive assistance and  University resources, which includes assistance with interim 
protective measures from either the Title IX Coordinator or, if the Complainant desires 
strict confidentiality, from University Counseling.  
 
The need for University resources varies based on the facts of the specific incident and 
the individual’s needs.  The Title IX Coordinator may take protective action, including 
accommodations for the Complainant and/or Respondent upon request and if such 
action is reasonably available.  In addition to what is set forth in this Section, other 
interim protective measures may be available based on specific circumstances.   
Moreover, the University may take action without a request from either party if the 
University determines doing so is in the best interest of a student, employee, or the 
University community.  Accommodations and/or support services may be limited or 
unavailable if interim sanctions or measures are put in place that restrict an individual’s 
access to areas of campus.  The Title IX Coordinator should be contacted for additional 
information.  Examples of potential interim protective measures and resources that may 
be available are generally outlined below: 

 Access to counseling services and assistance in setting up initial 
appointments 

 Imposition of a “No-Contact Order”; 
 Change in work schedule or job assignment; 
 Change in student’s campus housing or assistance with safe housing; 
 Emergency numbers for on and off campus law enforcement, and how the 

University can assist in notifying law enforcement if desired; 
 Limiting access to certain University facilities or activities pending 

resolution of the matter; 



Page 23 of 33 
 

 Voluntary leave of absence; 
 Providing academic support services, such as tutoring, change in class 

schedule, rescheduling exams and assignments, and/or alternative course 
completion options. 

 Any other measure that may be reasonably tailored to the involved 
individuals to achieve the goals of this Policy. 
 

XII. POST- RESOLUTION FOLLOWUP  
After a sanction or remedy is issued, the Title IX Coordinator will periodically contact the 
Complainant to ensure the Prohibited Conduct has ended and to determine if additional 
remedies are necessary and will contact the Respondent to assure compliance with any 
sanctions that have been imposed. The Complainant may decline future contact. Any 
violation by a Respondent of a sanction or protective measure imposed under the Title 
IX Policy or a failure by a University employee to provide a specified remedy should be 
reported to the Title IX Coordinator.  

 
The Complainant and Respondent are encouraged to provide the Title IX Coordinator 
with feedback about their experience with the process and recommendations regarding 
ways to improve the effectiveness of the campus’ implementation of the Sexual 
Misconduct Policy. 
 
XIII. DISHONEST, MALICIOUS, OR FRIVOLOUS ACCUSATIONS 
All reports should be made in good faith, meaning the individual making the report has a 
reasonable belief that the reported statements are true and relate to a potential violation 
of University policy. A bad faith report is one that is intentionally dishonest, frivolous, or 
malicious. When a report is made in bad faith, the bad faith report may deter other 
individuals from filing good faith reports, unnecessarily expend University and law 
enforcement resources, distract University and law enforcement officials from 
investigating good faith reports, and cause harm to the alleged accused and the 
community. It is a violation of this Policy to report intentionally dishonest, frivolous, or 
malicious allegations of Prohibited Conduct. If a complaint is brought in bad faith as 
demonstrated by a preponderance of the evidence, disciplinary action may be taken 
against the person making the complaint. In addition to violating this Policy, a person 
filing a bad faith report of Prohibited Conduct may be in violation of other University 
policies, state law, or federal law. 
 
XIV. CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIONS 
University disciplinary proceedings may be instituted against a student, faculty, or staff  
cited for a violation of a law that is also a violation of this Policy, the Code of Student 
Conduct, or other campus policies if both violations result from the same factual 
situation, without regard to the pendency of civil litigation in court or criminal arrest and 
prosecution. Proceedings under this Policy may be carried out prior to, simultaneously 
with, or following civil or criminal proceedings off-campus. 
 
In addition to being forbidden by this Policy, Prohibited Conduct may be a violation of 
federal or state criminal law. The University encourages individuals to report criminal 



Page 24 of 33 
 

activity immediately to UAHPD or local law enforcement.  Immediate reporting of crimes 
greatly enhances law enforcement’s ability to collect and maintain evidence.  For 
information about pursuing a criminal complaint, please contact UAHPD at (256) 824-
6596.  The Title IX Coordinator may provide assistance or support to an individual 
voluntarily choosing to file a criminal complaint.  
 
XV. PREVENTION, EDUCATION, AND AWARENESS 
The University of Alabama in Huntsville is committed to providing preventive, 
informative, and supportive programming for all members of the University community. 
Among other things, the University’s comprehensive education and awareness plan 
consists of the following: implementation of this Policy; educational programming that 
addresses all aspects of Prohibited Conduct; the University’s response to allegations of 
Prohibited Conduct; and University-provided support systems to remediate the effects of 
Prohibited Conduct. 
 
XVI. ACADEMIC FREEDOM AND SEXUAL HARASSMENT/HOSTILE 

ENVIRONMENT 
In cases of alleged sexual misconduct, the protections of the First Amendment must be 
considered if issues of speech or artistic expression are involved.  Free speech rights 
apply in the classroom and in all other educational programs and activities of public 
institutions, and First Amendment rights apply to the speech of students and 
employees.  Great care must be taken not to inhibit open discussion, academic debate, 
and expression of personal opinion, particularly in the classroom.  Nonetheless, speech 
or conduct of a harassing, sexual, or hostile nature that occurs in the context of 
educational instruction may exceed the protections of academic freedom and constitute 
prohibited harassment if it meets the definition of sexual misconduct and (1) is 
reasonably regarded as non-professorial speech (i.e. advances a personal interest of 
the student or faculty member as opposed to furthering the learning process or 
legitimate objectives of the course), or (2) lacks an accepted pedagogical purpose or is 
not germane to the academic subject matter.   
 
In the event of any conflict, the Sexual Misconduct Policy will govern: The Sexual 
Misconduct Policy does not create a contract or quasi-contract between the University 
or any University employee and any individual that may be affected by the Policy. 
 
XVII. OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION 
Past Sexual Histories/Evidence of Other Sexual Misconduct or Harassing Conduct 
In general, a Complainant’s prior sexual history, character, or reputation is not relevant 
and will not be considered as evidence during any stage of the process.  Where there 
was a relationship between the Complainant and the Respondent and consent is at 
issue, the prior sexual history between the parties may be relevant to assess the 
manner and nature of communications between the parties or to explain physical 
evidence.  However, the mere fact of a current or previous dating relationship, by itself, 
is not sufficient to constitute consent.  Any prior sexual history of the Complainant with 
other individuals is not relevant and will not be permitted, except to explain injury or 
mistaken identity.  



Page 25 of 33 
 

 
Evidence of Other Sexual Misconduct or Harassing Conduct by a Respondent 
The following types of evidence may be considered: (a) evidence of conduct similar in 
nature to the alleged misconduct by the respondent; (b) evidence of a pattern or to be 
considered together with the alleged misconduct in determining whether a hostile 
environment was created; (c) evidence relevant to proving intent, state of mind or 
identity.  Such evidence may be considered regardless of whether there has been a 
finding of responsibility as to the other conduct subject to the general determinations of 
admissibility of evidence described below in the Rules of Evidence.  
 
Rules of Evidence. 
University proceedings are not judicial or policy procedures designed to enforce laws.  
They are internal, administrative procedures designed to address reported violations of 
University policy.  The University does not conduct judicial proceedings and is not 
required to follow the rules of evidence employed by courts of law.  Information that 
does not come from a first-hand source (hearsay) may be considered.  Except as 
specifically provided in these Procedures, the University is not required to consider 
evidence to exclude or consider.  
 

Adviser  
Complainants and Respondents may be accompanied by one adviser throughout the 
investigation and any hearing process. An adviser is a support person who is present to 
provide support to a complainant or respondent throughout an investigation and/or 
hearing. An adviser may not speak, write, or otherwise communicate with an 
investigator, hearing officer or panel on behalf of the Complainant or Respondent. The 
Complainant or Respondent must answer the investigator or hearing panel questions. 
The adviser may confer with the Complainant/ Respondent before the Complainant/ 
Respondent responds to questions or statements.  Advisers who do not abide by these 
guidelines may be excluded from the process. 
 
Preservation of Records 
A confidential record of all complaints, including their disposition, will be maintained by 
the Title IX Coordinator and Human Resources in accordance with UAH’s document 
retention policy. 
 
Intersection with Other Procedures 
These complaint resolution procedures are the exclusive means of resolving complaints 
alleging violations of the Sexual Misconduct Policy. To the extent there are any 
inconsistencies between these complaint resolution procedures and other University 
grievance, complaint, or discipline procedures, these complaint resolution procedures 
will control the resolution of complaints alleging violations of the Sexual Misconduct 
Policy 

 
 
 

 



Page 26 of 33 
 

 
 

Appendix 1  
Prohibited Conduct Defined (UAH, State, and Federal Definitions) 

 
For purposes of the Sexual Misconduct Policy, conduct that is deemed, by a 
preponderance of the evidence (which means more likely than not the alleged conduct 
occurred) to be gender-based and meet the definitions of any of the types of Prohibited 
Conduct identified in the chart below (whether defined by UAH, or by state (AL) or 
federal (FED) criminal laws, as amended from time to time), constitutes a violation of 
this Policy. A person whose gender based conduct violates the federal or state criminal 
statutes as established by a preponderance of the evidence need not be criminally 
charged or convicted for their conduct to be deemed a violation of this Policy. 
Additionally, to the extent that federal or state criminal laws addressing gender-based 
conduct that could be deemed Prohibited Conduct are added or amended, it will be 
considered a violation of this Policy if an individual engages in such conduct (as proven 
by a preponderance of the evidence), even if the definitions below have not been 
updated to reflect the most recent federal or state language. 
 
 

INTIMATE PARTNER VIOLENCE: DATING VIOLENCE 
FED 
 

Violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a 
romantic or intimate nature with the victim.  
(i) The existence of such a relationship shall be determined based on the 
reporting party’s statement and with consideration of the length of the 
relationship, the type of relationship, and the frequency of interaction between 
the persons involved in the relationship.  
(ii) For the purposes of this definition—  
     (A) Dating violence includes, but is not limited to, sexual or physical abuse or 
the threat of such abuse.  
     (B) Dating violence does not include acts covered under the definition of 
domestic violence.  34 C.F.R. § 668.46(a) 

AL n/a 
INTIMATE PARTNER VIOLENCE: DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 

FED 
 

(i) A felony or misdemeanor crime of violence committed—  
      (A) By a current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim;  
      (B) By a person with whom the victim shares a child in common;  
      (C) By a person who is cohabitating with, or has cohabitated with, the victim 
as a spouse or intimate partner;  
      (D) By a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the 
domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction in which the crime of violence 
occurred, or  
      (E) By any other person against an adult or youth victim who is protected 
from that person’s acts under the domestic or family violence laws of the 
jurisdiction in which the crime of violence occurred.  34 C.F.R. § 668.46(a) 

AL  First Degree Domestic Violence – ALA. CODE § 13A-6-130(a) 



Page 27 of 33 
 

A person commits the crime of domestic violence in the first degree if the person 
commits the crime of assault in the first degree pursuant to Section 13A-6-20 or 
aggravated stalking pursuant to Section 13A-6-91, and the victim is a current or 
former spouse, parent, child, any person with whom the defendant has a child in 
common, a present or former household member, or a person who has or had a 
dating or engagement relationship with the defendant. 

 Second Degree Domestic Violence – ALA. CODE § 13A-6-131(a) 
A person commits the crime of domestic violence in the second degree if the 
person commits the crime of assault in the second degree pursuant to Section 
13A-6-21; the crime of intimidating a witness pursuant to Section 13A-10-123; 
the crime of stalking pursuant to Section 13A-6-90; the crime of burglary in the 
second or third degree pursuant to Sections 13A-7-6 and 13A-7-7; or the crime 
of criminal mischief in the first degree pursuant to Section 13A-7-21 and the 
victim is a current or former spouse, parent, child, any person with whom the 
defendant has a child in common, a present or former household member, or a 
person who has or had a dating or engagement relationship with the defendant. 

 Third Degree Domestic Violence – ALA. CODE § 13A-6-132(a) 
A person commits domestic violence in the third degree if the person commits 
the crime of assault in the third degree pursuant to Section 13A-6-22; the crime 
of menacing pursuant to Section 13A-6-23; the crime of reckless endangerment 
pursuant to Section 13A-6-24; the crime of criminal coercion pursuant to Section 
13A-6-25; the crime of harassment pursuant to subsection (a) of Section 13A-11-
8; the crime of criminal surveillance pursuant to Section 13A-11-32; the crime of 
harassing communications pursuant to subsection (b) of Section 13A-11-8; the 
crime of criminal trespass in the third degree pursuant to Section 13A-7-4; the 
crime of criminal mischief in the second or third degree pursuant to Sections 
13A-7-22 and 13A-7-23; or the crime of arson in the third degree pursuant to 
Section 13A-7-43 and the victim is a current or former spouse, parent, child, any 
person with whom the defendant has a child in common, a present or former 
household member, or a person who has or had a dating or engagement 
relationship with the defendant. 

 
 

STALKING 
FED 
 

Stalking is: (i) Engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that 
would cause a reasonable person to—  
     (A) Fear for the person’s safety or the safety of others; or  
     (B) Suffer substantial emotional distress.  
(ii) For the purposes of this definition—  
     (A) Course of conduct means two or more acts, including, but not limited to, 
acts in which the stalker directly, indirectly, or through third parties, by any action, 
method, device, or means, follows, monitors, observes, surveils, threatens, or 
communicates to or about a person, or interferes with a person’s property.  
     (B) Reasonable person means a reasonable person under similar 
circumstances and with similar identities to the victim.  
     (C) Substantial emotional distress means significant mental suffering or 



Page 28 of 33 
 

anguish that may, but does not necessarily, require medical or other professional 
treatment or counseling.  
34 C.F.R. § 668.46(a)  

AL First Degree Stalking – ALA. CODE § 13A-6-90(a) 
A person who intentionally and repeatedly follows or harasses another person 
and who makes a threat, either expressed or implied, with the intent to place that 
person in reasonable fear of death or serious bodily harm is guilty of the crime of 
stalking in the first degree.  
Second Degree Stalking – ALA. CODE § 13A-6-90.1(a) 
A person who, acting with an improper purpose, intentionally and repeatedly 
follows, harasses, telephones, or initiates communication, verbally, electronically, 
or otherwise, with another person, any member of the other person's immediate 
family, or any third party with whom the other person is acquainted, and causes 
material harm to the mental or emotional health of the other person, or causes 
such person to reasonably fear that his or her employment, business, or career is 
threatened, and the perpetrator was previously informed to cease that conduct is 
guilty of the crime of stalking in the second degree. 

SEXUAL ASSAULT OFFENSES –SEXUAL ASSAULT & SEXUAL EXPLOITATION, FONDLING, 
INCEST, RAPE & STATUTORY RAPE  

SEXUAL ASSAULT/SEXUAL CONTACT/SEXUAL EXPLOITATION 
UAH  
FED 
 

Sexual Assault is an offense that meets the definition of rape, fondling, incest, or 
statutory rape (see FED definitions below) 34 C.F.R. § 668.46(a) 

AL 
 

Alabama law includes definitions of the following in its sexual offenses category: 
rape, sodomy, sexual misconduct, sexual torture, sexual abuse, indecent 
exposure, enticing a child to enter vehicle, house, etc. for immoral purposes, 
sexual abuse of a child less than 12 years old.  Refer to AL definitions below for 
those. 
First Degree Sexual Abuse – ALA. CODE § 13A-6-66 
(a) A person commits the crime of sexual abuse in the first degree if: 
     (1) He subjects another person to sexual contact by forcible compulsion; or 
     (2) He subjects another person to sexual contact who is incapable of consent 
by reason of being physically helpless or mentally incapacitated. 
Second Degree Sexual Abuse – ALA. CODE § 13A-6-67 
(a) A person commits the crime of sexual abuse in the second degree if: 
     (1) He subjects another person to sexual contact who is incapable of consent 
by reason of some factor other than being less than 16 years old; or 
     (2) He, being 19 years old or older, subjects another person to sexual contact 
who is less than 16 years old, but more than 12 years old. 
First Degree Sodomy – ALA. CODE § 13A-6-63 
(a) A person commits the crime of sodomy in the first degree if: 
     (1) He engages in deviate sexual intercourse with another person by forcible 
compulsion; or 
     (2) He engages in deviate sexual intercourse with a person who is incapable 
of consent by reason of being physically helpless or mentally incapacitated; or 
     (3) He, being 16 years old or older, engages in deviate sexual intercourse 



Page 29 of 33 
 

with a person who is less than 12 years old. 
Second Degree Sodomy – ALA. CODE § 13A-6-64 
(a) A person commits the crime of sodomy in the second degree if: 
     (1) He, being 16 years old or older, engages in deviate sexual intercourse 
with another person less than 16 and more than 12 years old. 
     (2) He engages in deviate sexual intercourse with a person who is incapable 
of consent by reason of being mentally defective.   
Sexual Torture – ALA. CODE § 13A-6-65.1 
(a) A person commits the crime of sexual torture: 
     (1) By penetrating the vagina or anus or mouth of another person with an 
inanimate object by forcible compulsion with the intent to sexually torture or to 
sexually abuse. 
     (2) By penetrating the vagina or anus or mouth of a person who is incapable 
of consent by reason of physical helplessness or mental incapacity with an 
inanimate object, with the intent to sexually torture or to sexually abuse. 
     (3) By penetrating the vagina or anus or mouth of a person who is less than 
12 years old with an inanimate object, by a person who is 16 years old or older 
with the intent to sexually torture or to sexually abuse. 
Indecent Exposure – ALA. CODE § 13A-6-68 
(a) A person commits the crime of indecent exposure if, with intent to arouse or 
gratify sexual desire of himself or of any person other than his spouse, he 
exposes his genitals under circumstances in which he knows his conduct is likely 
to cause affront or alarm in any public place or on the private premises of 
another or so near thereto as to be seen from such private premises. 
Enticing Child to Enter Vehicle, House, Etc. for Immoral Purposes – ALA. 
CODE § 13A-6-69 
(a) It shall be unlawful for any person with lascivious intent to entice, allure, 
persuade, or invite, or attempt to entice, allure, persuade, or invite, any child 
under 16 years of age to enter any vehicle, room, house, office, or other place for 
the purpose of proposing to such child the performance of an act of sexual 
intercourse or an act which constitutes the offense of sodomy or for the purpose 
of proposing the fondling or feeling of the sexual or genital parts of such child or 
the breast of such child, or for the purpose of committing an aggravated assault 
on such child, or for the purpose of proposing that such child fondle or feel the 
sexual or genital parts of such person. 
Sexual Abuse of a Child Less than 12 Years Old – ALA. CODE § 13A-6-69.1 
(a) A person commits the crime of sexual abuse of a child less than 12 years old 
if he or she, being 16 years old or older, subjects another person who is less 
than 12 years old to sexual contact. 
School Employee Having Sexual Contact With a Student Under the Age of 
19 Years – ALA. CODE § 13A-6-82 
(a) A person commits the crime of a school employee having sexual contact with 
a student under the age of 19 years if he or she is a school employee and 
engaging in sexual contact with a student, regardless of whether the student is 
male or female. Consent is not a defense to a charge under this section. 
(b) As used in this section, sexual contact means any touching of the sexual or 



Page 30 of 33 
 

other intimate parts of a student, done for the purpose of gratifying the sexual 
desire of either party. The term includes soliciting or harassing a student to 
perform a sex act. 

 
FONDLING 

FED 
 

The touching of the private body parts of another person for the purpose of 
sexual gratification, without the consent of the victim, including instances where 
the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her age or because of 
his/her temporary or permanent mental incapacity. 34 C.F.R. § 668.46 Appendix 
A 

AL n/a 
INCEST 

AL  
 

(a) A person commits incest if he marries or engages in sexual intercourse with a 
person he knows to be, either legitimately or illegitimately: 
      (1) His ancestor or descendant by blood or adoption; or 
      (2) His brother or sister of the whole or half-blood or by adoption; or 
      (3) His stepchild or stepparent, while the marriage creating the relationship 
exists; or 
      (4) His aunt, uncle, nephew or niece of the whole or half-blood. 
(b) A person shall not be convicted of incest or of an attempt to commit incest 
upon the uncorroborated testimony of the person with whom the offense is 
alleged to have been committed. Ala. Code § 13A-13-3 

FED 
 

Sexual intercourse between persons who are related to each other within the 
degrees wherein marriage is prohibited by law. 34 C.F.R. § 668.46 Appendix A 

RAPE 
FED 
 

The penetration, no matter how slight, of the vagina or anus with any body part 
or object, or oral penetration by a sex organ of another person, without the 
consent of the victim.  34 C.F.R. § 668.46 Appendix A 

AL First Degree Rape – ALA. CODE § 13A-6-61 
(a) A person commits the crime of rape in the first degree if: 
     (1) He or she engages in sexual intercourse with a member of the opposite 
sex by forcible compulsion; or 
     (2) He or she engages in sexual intercourse with a member of the opposite 
sex who is incapable of consent by reason of being physically helpless or 
mentally incapacitated; or 
     (3) He or she, being 16 years or older, engages in sexual intercourse with a 
member of the opposite sex who is less than 12 years old. 
Second Degree Rape – ALA. CODE § 13A-6-62 
(a) A person commits the crime of rape in the second degree if: 
     (1) Being 16 years old or older, he or she engages in sexual intercourse with 
a member of the opposite sex less than 16 and more than 12 years old; 
provided, however, the actor is at least two years older than the member of the 
opposite sex. 
     (2) He or she engages in sexual intercourse with a member of the opposite 
sex who is incapable of consent by reason of being mentally defective. 

STATUTORY RAPE 



Page 31 of 33 
 

FED 
 

Sexual intercourse with a person who is under the statutory age of consent. 34 
C.F.R. § 668.46 Appendix A 

AL  
 

In Alabama, it is illegal for an adult (someone 18 or older) to have sex with a 
minor (someone younger than 16), even if the sex is consensual. See AL 
definition of consent. 

HARASSMENT & SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
AL  n/a 
FED n/a 
 
 
Review The Office of the Director of Compliance and Title IX Coordinator is 
responsible for the review of this policy every five years (or whenever circumstances 
require). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 32 of 33 
 

APPROVAL:  
 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
Chief University Counsel        Date 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
Director of Compliance and Title IX Coordinator    Date 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
Provost and Executive Vice President for     Date 
Academic Affairs  
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
Vice President for Finance & Administration     Date 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
Vice President for University Advancement     Date 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
Vice President for Student Affairs       Date 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
Vice President for Research and Economic Development    Date 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
Vice President for Diversity and Multicultural Affairs     Date 
 
 
 
 



Page 33 of 33 
 

APPROVED:  
 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
President          Date 
 
 



                      
 
 
 

 

April 19, 2018 
 
From:  Faculty Senate 
To:  President Altenkirch 
 
Dear Dr. Altenkirch, 
The Faculty Senate discussed the Sexual Misconduct Policy (01.04.02) that you submitted to the 
Senate on January 29, 2018. 
 
The Senate recognizes the need for a stringent policy that addresses sexual misconduct.  The 
intent of this policy appears to be the protection of the UA System; it does not have the 
protection of the faculty in its core.  In the opinion of the Senate this policy needs revision.   
 
The most disconcerting issue is how this policy would be used in the case of false allegations.  
Chapter XIII deals with false and malicious allegations, but only states that “disciplinary action 
may be taken against the person making the complaint”.  There are several scenarios to be 
considered (i) students making false allegations after attempts to persuade an instructor for a 
better grade failed, (ii) false allegations, often made in conjunction with divorce cases, made by 
person(s) not associated with UAH, to whom the disciplinary actions outlined in Chapter XIII 
cannot be applied to.   
 
The mandatory reporting described in Chapter VI needs clarification; mandatory reporting 
cannot include actions witnessed or observed off campus.  If egregious acts are witnessed by 
UAH faculty or students off campus than it is at the discretion of the individual who observes the 
act to call police.  There cannot be mandatory reporting for off campus events, this would 
introduce an authoritarian mind-set that is incommensurate with academic ideals. 
 
The itemization of “forbidden contacts”, chapter II, is counterproductive as it would allow for all 
other, non-mentioned contacts, which may however be equally or more offensive. That part of 
the policy should be re-worded so it is robust and comprehensive without the current level of 
specificity.   This would also alleviate the current very graphic and descriptive language, which 
is objectionable. 
 
In summary, it is the opinion of the Faculty Senate that this policy was not produced in an effort 
to protect faculty.  The Senate also feels that aspects of the Sexual Misconduct Policy are in part 
too graphic, too limiting because of excessive specificity, and in other aspects too far-reaching.  
The subject of false allegations is inadequately considered and deficient.  A collection of 

 
The Faculty Senate 

College of Science              Huntsville, Alabama 35899               256.824.6188               256.824.6349              cscholz@chemistry.uah.edu 



hypothetical scenarios that are not or poorly addressed in this policy is provided in the 
addendum.   
 
 
 
The UAH Faculty Senate 
 
 
Addendum 
 
 
  
 
 
 
	



Faculty Senate Executive 4-12-2018   Page 1 

 
 

FACULTY SENATE EXECUTIVE MEETING 
April 12, 2018 

12:50 P.M. CTC 104 
 

  
 

Present:     Carmen Scholz, Laird Burns, Monica Dillihunt, Tim Newman, Christina Carmen, Mike 
Banish, Kader Frendi, David Johnson, Vladimir Florinski 

 
Absent: Anne Marie Choup 
 
Ex-Officio: Provost Christine Curtis 
 
Guest: President Bob Altenkirch 
 
 
 
 Faculty Senate President Carmen Scholz called the meeting to order at 12:52 pm.   
 Administrative Reports 

o President Bob Altenkirch 
 This is the rendering of Morton Hall and the greenway.  The trees in the back are 

going to be thinned out for more visibility of the structure.  It will help move some 
of the tent people.  We own part of that area and either the state or city owns the 
other part.  The parking lot on the end of Morton now will be turned.   

 Mike – I am lost.  You said it is going to connect with the greenway.  I don’t 
see the connection. 

 President – It isn’t there yet.  The green space by the parking lot, there will 
be a left turn to connect to the greenway.   

 Charger Village bond issue went well.  It sold; there is money in the bank.  We will 
start on Roberts/Morton bond issue.  In May, Morton will move to CTC.  In October, 
construction will begin.  In July of 2019, CTC people will move into the renovated 
building.  In December 2019, there will be movement into the new addition.  
Roberts will move in the fall. 

 Mike – Old Morton will be ready by July?  The addition will not be ready 
until spring ’20? 

 President – Correct. 

 Carmen – Are there offices or just classrooms? 

 President – Just classrooms? 

 Carmen – The largest classroom is only 119?  So the 200 classes won’t fit? 

 Provost – Correct.   

 Mike – Why did we decide the building would open in the fall and the 
classrooms in the spring? 

 Provost – Construction for the new couldn’t move as fast as renovation. 

 Kader – How much square footage are we adding? 

 
Faculty Senate 

 
Faculty Senate 



Faculty Senate Executive 4-12-2018   Page 2 

 Provost – I don’t remember, but we pushed them to get as large as 
classrooms as we can get.   

 Laird – How many classrooms? 

 Provost – Four tiered, three flat, two or three forty seat ones. 

 Carmen – Can we use the Chan Auditorium for teaching? 

 Provost – Yes, but people don’t like it. 

 Carmen – The 119 room doesn’t accommodate freshman chemistry or 
organic. 

 Kader – The same is said about 105 in Tech Hall.  It has pillars.  It isn’t set up 
for teaching. 

 Provost – The new classrooms will have sufficient space so people can walk 
behind.  The 74 seat ones are set up like nursing.  The 80 and 100 are more 
traditional.  More traditional holds more people.  They have all real tables 
and moving chairs. 

 When the new building is done in December 2019, education will move here.  
March 2020 renovation will start.  July 2020 they will move back to Roberts.  We 
then need to look at what to do with this space.  Converting this into a classroom 
building didn’t come through.   

 Carmen – What about labs? 

 Provost – That would be major renovation. 

 Laird – PCS? 

 President – That seemed too expensive. 

 Kader – In the twenty year map, there was a connection between CTC and 
Beville.  Is that still long term? 

 President – Beville is changing. It was built for the army.   The army had to 
stay in the Beville when coming for training.  That isn’t true anymore.  The 
hotel part is now housing students.   

 Mike – That is why they are full? 

 President- Yes. 

 Provost – It’s students.   
 The Cyber School that is coming to Huntsville needs a short and long term solution.  

One short term solution was the Beville Center.  You will have kids on campus.  In 
the first year, they would have a small number of students.  If we can work it with 
the army, there are classrooms and food service.  There is discussion about the state 
building housing for that school.  There are three options. One is on the south end, 
other is Executive Plaza, and lastly, behind Spragins.  The ones looking at this prefer 
the southern tip. 

 Parking – When the residence hall comes online, parking will be associated.  We will 
have to reorganize parking on that end.  We proposed to the board that we increase 
parking fees $5-$10 per permit.  If you buy for the year, it increases by $10.  If you 
buy in the spring it’s more.  UAB is raising some of their permits $100/year.  
Tuscaloosa is raising $20/year.  The board was okay with it.  The other issue is the 
expiration date on the permit.  Classes start before the permit expires on August 
31st.  The issue with that date is the students won’t live in the same place next fall as 
this fall.  You have students that may only be commuters in the fall not residents.  
Going forward, we need to change the expiration date. 

 Carmen – Why doesn’t the decal expire when the semester starts? 



Faculty Senate Executive 4-12-2018   Page 3 

 President – We will have to go with something like that. 

 Laird – The first six weeks of every semester is terrible.   

 Carmen – I had a feeling that last year during the summer, they knew you 
couldn’t be ticketed.  

 Kader – You said there will be a fee increase?  What will the fee go to? 

 President – Parking lot at MSB.  Fix executive Plaza parking.  This helps fix 
lighting. 

 Laird – What about when the renovation center comes online? 

 President – That will make problems.   

 Provost – We have the benchmark which is really across the street.   

 Mike – How does that help us? 

 Provost- You can walk down Bradford.  It’s very close to the business center. 

 Mike – That goes back to the issue to cross Sparkman. 

 Laird – Is there a crosswalk? 

 Mike – Yes. 

 Kader – Can we have something like you have on Holmes on Sparkman? 

 President- When we ask about Sparkman, they say no.  The reason is 
because is connects University to I-565. 

 Christina – It’s terrible to wait until something terrible happens. 

 Kader – There has already been a casualty. 

 Mike – Why don’t our police patrol Sparkman? 

 Tim – They do.  I have heard about them giving tickets. 

 President- They patrol Sparkman and Executive Plaza. 

 Tim – I think we are approaching a morale issue with faculty.  Many feel 
they are falling behind other institutions within salary.  

 President – The raise pool is the same.  When someone is in place on May 
15th, then they leave, the money is in the pool.  It gets distributed to those 
in that pool. 

 Tim – You gave all VP’s a 2.5% raise.  Christine received a 2% raise. 

 Provost – I was in that pool.  There are people being paid under market 
price.  We can’t pay all them to get them up to market.  It was about $28-
$29K.  We spread that across all cases. 

 Tim – I am not here to argue numbers.  I am told it isn’t a onetime thing, it 
happens every year.  The average faculty raise is much lower than the VP 
raise.  They feel they aren’t being paid attention too.  You don’t need to 
make the case to me, but to the faculty.  On the Child Protection Policy and 
Sexual Misconduct Policy, these policies are not designed to protect faculty 
or students.  They are designed by lawyers to protect the university and the 
system from lawsuits.  We’ve got to have attorneys that are looking out for 
faculty interest.  Bob, I don’t think they look out for your interest.  They are 
protecting the system.  That is who hired them. 

 President- There is two kinds of policies.  One you have great legal 
exposure.  You can defend those in court.  We don’t get sued much here, 
but Tuscaloosa does.  Yes, those are written to protect us from legal 
problems.  Then there are other policies that is doesn’t matter. 

 Mike – One of the things that we have talked about is those policies don’t 
give you a clear definition.  They are written very poorly in regards to our 



Faculty Senate Executive 4-12-2018   Page 4 

institution to define care, custody, and control.  If we put on a science fair 
here, the policy is very difficult.  Nobody can figure out from that policy 
where science fair comes in if I am a judge?  This goes back to what Tim is 
saying.  The policy is very poor at limiting your potential exposure, ours and 
the institutions.  The ones who wrote the policy have little knowledge about 
the outreach opportunities here.  Those are incredibly poor written policies.   
They open us all up to anything.  That is one of the real problems.  They 
aren’t looking out for faculty or the institutions.  The lawyers aren’t at the 
science fair. 

 Tim – Our faculty are on the front line.   These lawyers aren’t looking out for 
us on the front line.  It makes it hard to do our job.  I don’t think they are 
servicing us well.  If we teach a 500 level class, prerequisites are gone.  Does 
the faculty control the curriculum?  Or does someone else?  If we teach a 
class that is cross listed, the 400 have prerequisites, 500 doesn’t.  Why 
didn’t they even think I teach a cross listed course?  What happens at the 
end of the semester?  We get nasty comments at the end of the semester 
because some have prerequisites and some don’t.  In the graduate 
catalogue, the prerequisites are gone. 

 Provost – You are referring to the graduate catalogue? 

 Tim – Yes.  

 Carmen – I think a lot got lost in the catalogues when it was rewritten or 
updated.  

 Tim – That is an issue for faculty.  We have the issue of not having waiting 
list for courses.  We just keep moving rooms.  We write our syllabus for one 
number of students, and then it keeps changing.  Do we redo this last 
minute?  Or maybe the room has changed and it affects how we deliver 
coursework?  The last issue is DFW’s.  If you have more than 25% DFW’s, 
you go on a list.  The faculty then feels like they are viewed as poor 
teachers.  This is our life work.  You all are here for 5-10 years, we are 
invested we are here 15-20 years.  To put the blame on faculty, that does 
not go over well.  There are serious morale issues.  I have only touched the 
tip of the iceberg.  We are not headed in the right direction.  We will have a 
faculty fallout if we do not correct this.   

 Provost – The DFW rates are looked at each semester to see what the issues 
are.  It is then reviewed.  We look to see if it’s faculty or are the students not 
prepared.  Deans, Associate Deans, and Chairs are the ones that look at this. 

 Mike – I have brought this up already this year.  We are having a real 
problem with athletics.  It didn’t use to be the way it was.  I have two 
students that will miss the final because they are going to the Gulf Coast 
Championship.  If we have to withdraw from the Gulf Coast because they 
have this during our finals that is a decisions we have to make.  It needs to 
be made known that these are scheduled during our finals week.  The other 
thing is we can’t come because I have to make practice because the coach 
will cut me or I have to make the games.  This is an academic institution.  A 
decade ago, I may have had a baseball player that showed up and was 
prepared.  I used to want more of them.  I am telling you now; I don’t want 
them in my class.  The coaches, AD, whoever, are taking more priority in 



Faculty Senate Executive 4-12-2018   Page 5 

winning championships rather than graduating on time or getting a D or F.  I 
am sorry you can’t take a final two days early in certain classes.  Why is our 
coach saying you have to go and miss finals?   

 Vladimir – Are they required to comply? 

 Mike – If they don’t, they lose their scholarships.   

 President – The athletes do better academically than the non-athletes.  That 
is all facts.  

 Mike – Up until 5 years ago, they did.   

 President – But they are doing better academically? 

 Mike – No.  Back to the salary pool, if there is such a disparity between 
faculty and institutions, why don’t we have the same raise pool?  You know 
there are faculty vastly under paid.  You are sucking money out of the rest 
of the faculty. 

 Provost – These are people have retired or left on May 15th.  The money 
goes into a pool.  The college can decide or the college can submit names 
for most serious cases.  That is what we do. 

 Mike – So the rest of the faculty suffer?  What was the average faculty 
raise? 

 Provost – 2% pool.  The severely underpaid have come from the May 15th 
pool.  The May 15th pool is people who are not here.  Nothing was taken 
from the ones here.   

 Mike – You are using the pool money to make up for severely underpaid 
faculty. 

 Provost – All the 2% that went to each faculty/staff member to the college 
went to the college. 

 Laird – For those underpaid, who made that call? 

 Provost – No, it was a request from the college.   

 President – The average raise would be higher than 2%.  It is calculated on a 
higher population than what it was given to. 

 Provost – There were some that was severely underpaid.   

 President – The average raise will be higher than the pool. 

 Mike – I don’t think that really happened. 

 President- At the VP level, there was a 2.5%.  That was calculated on Ray 
Pinner being here. 

 Mike – Why do the VP’s have a separate pool?  Every year the difference 
between the VP pool and the faculty pool of money continues to grow. 

 President – It is not true. 

 Mike – They will get the exact same raise as the faculty.   

 President – There will be a pool. 

 Kader - I come from the biggest department on campus.  We lost two staff 
assistants.  We had no overlap of the new hire.  The department has been 
running with no one in the main office.   

 Provost – One person has been hired.  I made the request for the second 
person the President, he said yes. 

 Kader – There was no overlap between the new hire and the old to coach 
them.  We had to wait until someone was retired and gone fully before the 
new person was here.  Why do we have to wait for someone making $35K 



Faculty Senate Executive 4-12-2018   Page 6 

to be completely gone?  I didn’t see the logic when looking at their level, 
why do we have to wait for them to be gone? 

 Provost – Bob, we are following the rules you gave us.  When we have 
special circumstances we can adjust? 

 President – Yes. 

 Kader – This was unfair to the dept. 

 Mike – You have how many new faculty at 1-2 years?  

 Kader – 3-4.  

 Mike – You are putting someone in there that isn’t used to the university 
accounting system.  You have millions of dollars that no one knows how to 
help the new faculty.  Someone should have been moved over form C&G.  
Nobody was prepared for that.  That was the biggest tragedy. 

 Carmen – I got a couple of phone calls for this year’s tenure decision.  I 
understand it was spread out over three days?   

 Monica – We had some exceptions because things didn’t occur with the 
guidelines per the handbook.  We sent those back to the Provost and had to 
wait on the Department Chair for new letters. 

 Carmen – That is not within three days?  I can only speak to the phone calls I 
received.  I really like the way of delivering all letters on the same day.  I 
think hand delivering would be better.   

 Monica – In Christine’s defense, there were issues in following procedures.   

 Carmen – The other issue was negative tenure decisions.  I was aware that 
counseling for those individuals.  From what I hear, it wasn’t made available.  
The retention issue is another.  Talking to faculty and colleagues in my 
department.  We talk about how the advising is the problem.  We are 
curtailed in our interaction.  I have tried as Chair that doesn’t go well.  We 
had much better success with the students when they were advised by 
faculty members.  We have a handful that is willing to join, but they are 
pushing away labs.  I have tried with food and goodies.  If we could have 
access to our students, I think the retention would be better. 

 Provost – What access would you want? 

 Carmen – I would like for the professors to be put back in charge of advising 
our students.   

 Provost – Some faculty are advisors? 

 Carmen – No. 

 Tim - In our department, seven years ago they took that away from us.   

 Provost – Professional advisors are good.  There is nothing wrong with the 
professors advising. 

 Mike – We were told we were not allowed to advise.  There isn’t a place for 
them to sign.  They don’t have to come see me before they schedule their 
classes.  They can do what the advisors say even if it is opposite of what I 
say. 

 Kader – This is direct correlation between our DFW rate and advising.  I see 
the students doing things they shouldn’t be doing. 

 Carmen – I tried to tell people once they went to the advising center they 
need to go to the undergraduate advisors.  No one usually comes to see that 
advisors. 



Faculty Senate Executive 4-12-2018   Page 7 

 Monica – We have an intro course.  The Chair assigns a list of advisees.  We 
put together a schedule on our door.  We meet with the students.  They are 
assigned to the faculty advisor.  They have to sit down with us.  It is part of 
their requirement in that intro course. 

 Carmen – Our intro course is diluted into engineers. 

 Mike – Years ago, they took our signature off the form. 

 Provost - Have you talked with your Chairs?  

 Mike – Yes.  They say no. 

 Christina – In MAE, there is a central location. 

 Carmen – In our department, we are much smaller. 
o Provost Christine Curtis  

 We have the Dean search ongoing for AHSS.  We have one candidate here today.  
The public session is right now and the next is during senate meeting.   

 The board meeting, the PhD passed.  It has got to ACHE. 
 The Center for Regional Transportation Management has passed.  It should be up 

and running by early June.   
 Graduation is May 6th.  We have normal commencement times. 
 Faculty searches have gone very well.   
 Tomorrow morning the IT policies will be worked on. 

 Kader – Thank you for your efforts on the PhD.   

 Provost – I am bringing up a PhD in Psychology. 
 Mike - We had the meeting with the rest of the faculty senates after the board 

meeting.  It was nicely done.  Interesting things that came out was UA faculty has no 
knowledge of Board Rule 108, Child Protection, and Sexual Assault.  UAB has 
knowledge of Board Rule 108, but do not understand it.  They have no knowledge of 
Child Protection or Sexual Assault.  They are going to send Carmen their policies.  No 
one is together on that.  We came to an agreement that the getting together of 
young faculty, they will choose the new investigators.  The first meeting will be at 
UAB and ask the Chancellor to cover hotel room costs.   It would be called the 
Chancellors Choice Award.  We think of this as an investment.   

 Provost – We pay for anything the system does. 

 Monica – This was in lieu of the bus tour trip.  

 Provost – One idea on getting people together would be with the Scholar’s 
Institute.  We support the people that go from the Provost Office.  If they 
are interested, they come together at the same time.  It rotates among the 
institutions.   

 Mike – This coming May it is at UAB? 

 Provost – Yes. 
 Officer/Committee Report 

o Christina Carmen, Governance and Operations Committee Chair 
 The governance committee is actively pursuing senators for next year.  The 

members have done a great job.  Our success rate is we have new senators from 14 
departments.  We are actively seeking the five that we are waiting on.  Next 
Thursday is the last faculty senator meeting; can we send that out to new senators?  
Thank you, Tim and Carmen, for answering questions.  From your department, you 
have been reelected and then you are nominated for President-Elect.  That is still 
pending?  If you do become President – Elect, will you be a voting member? 



Faculty Senate Executive 4-12-2018   Page 8 

 Tim – Should he win both, the department will send another member.   
 The voting for President-Elect, does that happen with me?  

 Tim – In the call for senate meeting, the call will close for nominations, and 
then let the elections start.  

 I have been keeping up with absences.  The latest with that is we have had one with 
two and a warning was sent.  We now have one without three. 

 Tim – If it isn’t in a row, they are ok. 
o Monica Dillihunt, Undergraduate Scholastic Affairs Committee Chair 

 Mike and I are going to get together and discuss retention issues.  Brant was 
supposed to help me get information. 

o Tim Newman, Parliamentarian 
 No report. 

o Laird Burns, Finance and Resources Committee Chair 
 RCEU: We had a couple that didn’t work out.  We are at 38.  We are learning what 

clauses to put in for next time.   

 Carmen – 38 confirmed? 

 Laird – 35 but 3 sent out. 
o Mike Banish, Past/President-Elect 

 No report. 
o Kader Frendi, Ombudsperson 

 No report. 
o Vladimir Florinski, Personnel Committee Chair 

 No report. 
o David Johnson, Faculty and Student Development Committee Chair 

 No report. 
 Kader Frendi moves to extend meeting by five minutes.  Ayes carry. 
 Bill 420 

o This was started last time.  It goes to the top of the agenda.  Bill 422 & 423 will carry over.  
We need to come up with a response letter on Sexual Misconduct.  I have sent a skeleton 
letter.  I have received from Tim earlier a list of items that are not addressed or ill-addressed 
in the policy.  I think we have to discuss this letter by email due to time.  Finally, I have a 
table of the bills that we worked on this past year.   

 Mike – I asked you last time, Christine, specifically by this policy about the faculty 
that was dismissed by prejudice.  You said you would look into this? 

 Provost – I forgot. 
 Mike – It is not clear and it could go under either policy.   
 Provost – I am not sure that once it gets into the courts if we would conduct this. 
 Mike – It is not clear. 
 Carmen – False allegations are not addressed properly in this policy.  There is the 

issue that Mike brought up.  Under false allegations, students make them against 
faculty.  We know students offer for better grades, if they are turned down, they 
retaliate.   

 Laird – Until it is determined true or false, what is the process in between? 
 Tim – This policy will be a nightmare to administer.  You are going to need a whole 

fleet of people to investigate.  I am afraid we won’t have people properly trained. 
 Laird – Using the words “sufficiently severe”, the language is not clear. 
 Provost – We are still hoping for improvement.   

o Bill 420, 422, & 423 will be placed on the faculty senate agenda. 



Faculty Senate Executive 4-12-2018   Page 9 

 Approval of agenda ayes carry. 
 Meeting adjourned at 2:26 pm. 
 



Faculty Senate 3-15-18   Page 1 

 
 

FACULTY SENATE MEETING 
March 15, 2018 

12:50 P.M. SST 050 
 

  
 

Present:    Milton Shen, Laird Burns, Katie Baldwin, David Harwell, Joey Taylor, Joe Conway, 
David Johnson, Andrei Gandila, Carolyn Sanders, Deborah Heikes, Anne Marie 
Choup, Dianhan Zheng, Kyle Knight, Mike Banish, Yu Lei, Tingting Wu, Yuri 
Shtessel, Fat Ho, James Swain, Kader Frendi, Christina Carmen, Fran Wessling, 
Angela Hollingsworth, Sharon Spencer, Monica Beck, Shanhu Lee, Carmen 
Scholz, Roy Magnuson, Jeff Weimer, Tim Newman, Harry Delugach, Shangbing 
Ai, Lingze Duan, Vladmir Florinski, Monica Dillihunt, Shannon Mathis, Ron 
Schwertfeger 

 
Absent with Proxy: Gang Wang, Chris Allport, Lori Lioce, Amy Hunter, Qingyuan Han 
 
Absent without Proxy: Sophia Marinova, Kevin Bao, Earl Wells, Ann Bianchi 
 
Ex-Officio: Provost Christine Curtis 
 
Guest: President Bob Altenkirch, Mayor Tommy Battle 
 
 
 
 Faculty Senate President Carmen Scholz called the meeting to order at 12:55 pm.   
 Meeting Review: 

o Bill 416 passed second and third reading. 
o Bill 419 passed second and third reading. 

 Guest: 
o Mayor Tommy Battle 

 We talk about our assets that will help us grow.  Our four year universities are the 
tip of the spear that will help us grow.  We make sure we have the building blocks in 
place to help us grow.  Ten years ago, we started to change our conversation.  How 
many have come from out of the state and have a preconceived notion of Alabama?  
As we have people come in, we have it where they come in and see our university, 
Space and Rocket Center, and our intelligent population.  When people leave, most 
people say they had no idea it was really the way it was in Alabama.  We wear pens 
that say “Huntsville, Smart Place”.  We talk about our engineers and the intelligence 
we have here.  Going through this, it has been interesting to talk about our smart 
city.  Things are done here that are not done anywhere else.  When you start 
thinking about it, let’s start changing the conversation.  You have done work that 
has been ground breaking.  It has helped us grow. The research and development 
done here has helped industries come here.  The key to all of this is great success in 
the community.  Many say that it starts with Pre-K.  We have people who are asking 
what we can do to further what we are doing.  When we look at that, the question is 

 
Faculty Senate 

 
Faculty Senate 



Faculty Senate 3-15-18   Page 2 

how can we help ourselves?  I say thank you to each of you for being part of our 
success.  The idea that we believe in education is reality.  We spend $10K per 
student in this community; Oklahoma City spends $6K.  This is the value that we 
have in this community.  We value our two year and four year schools.  The workers 
I recruit depend on UAH and our other four year institutes; the pay scale is $80K - 
$100K per year.  We can do this because of this four year institution.   

 Kader – Thank you for coming. As UAH grows into more of an pedestrian 
campus, we are growing more towards Sparkman Drive.  Crossing that road 
is a challenge.  Will the city do anything? 

 Mayor – We haven’t really started talking about that.  We need to start 
thinking how to get students across easily.  We have seen some plans of 
what will happen in this northern area.  We are going to have to get some 
plans together to help with out.  You have had terrific growth here.  We all 
have to start thinking about plans as this institute grows.   

 Mike – When you talk about supporting large name companies that come 
here, we take pride in businesses that grow from our alumni.  It seems the 
state has a philosophy we will promise you a lot if you come here. 

 Mayor – You can easily figure out what companies have come here and 
grown.  When you start talking about local companies, we can recruit easily 
because of our educated population.  We have a very low tax base.  There is 
a philosophy here that the people have had all along.  We are trying to get 
people here out of the state.  They provide job multipliers.  We have to have 
a system of incentive to bring them here, but there has to be a return on 
investment.  I think us as a community will see things go to other places if 
we don’t have a return on investment.   

 Harry – Standing as a faculty at UAH, you come here from the city 
perspectives.  Can you give us insight on how to collaborate with our sister 
institutes? 

 Mayor – It is an interesting concept.  You have the Center of Innovation 
coming.  All of those ideas have come together because of the environment 
in the city.  It is really interesting to see the intellect of the kids that are in 
our community.  They are trying to tie into the technology here.  I think we 
have put together an environment that helps.  We will be able to co-join for 
learning.  We have encouraged a lot of that.  We have a lady that lives here 
and works for Disney in Orlando.  We have put a lot into place. 

 Laird – We have a couple new graduate programs.  I see that some 
companies have been working with our students on certain projects.  I am 
wondering if the city would be interested in looking into those too. 

 Mayor – We would love too.  We need the set of outside eyes.  We work 
close with A&M with their planning school.   

 Carmen – Looking into the future, education is chronically plagued with no 
money.  What is your thought on the topic of a lottery? 

 Mayor – That is a great education.  Lottery is just a financial tool.  We have a 
lot of people leaving here to go to Tennessee.  There are two arguments.  It 
takes money from those who really don’t have it.  The second part is people 
are going to do it.  I believe the people should vote on it.  It is a different tax 
system.  You have to have a commission that is beyond reproach.  Second, 



Faculty Senate 3-15-18   Page 3 

where does the money go?  I think half goes to the two year colleges.  Then 
the other half goes to four year colleges.  We are putting money into the job 
multipliers.  That is where I stand on it. 

 David – What is your commitment to the arts in the college and community? 

 Mayor – We are very lucky in this community to have the emphasis on the 
arts.  They provide imagination, ingenuity.  They provide everything we 
need in an engineering world.  When you look at what the arts do for us, 
they give us the ability to grow.  They give the young student a spark of 
imagination.  The arts to me drive our ingenuity in our state.  There is 
nothing better that we can do but promote the arts.  Everyone has 
something that is a passion to them in the arts world. 

 Administrative Reports 
o President Bob Altenkirch 

 Christine will talk about the board agenda.  I have been working on one item with 
Ray Vaughn.  We will be creating a program to help with intellectual property.  Most 
institutions that have incubators have this type of thing. 

 Tommy mentioned Executive Plaza. We moved the Counseling Center over there on 
a short term basis.  We moved four startup companies into the plaza.  

 This afternoon is the employee recognition program. 
 Carmen had asked me about putting signs on the building stating no weapons in the 

building.  I looked into this and it is complicated.  In 2013, Alabama put a law into 
place that restricts were you can have fire arms.  It restricts firearms to certain types 
of facilities – police station, mental health care.  You can’t take those in unless you 
are approved to do so.  Facilities that have guards or security features are not 
allowed to have weapons in them.  On those two kinds of facilities, you are 
supposed to put signs up that state no weapon.  We don’ have them up, but we are 
going to get those up.  Spragins Hall has police during athletic events.  There are 
certain facilities that you aren’t allowed to restrict.  Buildings on campus that aren’t 
guarded, Alabama law permits people to enter with a weapon.  We have a policy 
that says no weapons.  This grew out of the law in 2013.  It is possible that our policy 
is not consistent with the law.  The argument for having the policy is the Board of 
Trustees manages the campuses.  The board can put into place policies that may not 
follow Alabama Law.  In the Alabama constitution, every citizen has a fundamental 
right to bear arms.  No one has challenged our policy yet.  The consensus from the 
legal counsel and police, if we try to enforce this in every building, we will have a 
legal challenge.  We don’t want to disturb the debate.  We will put signs on Spragins 
and other venues, but not all around campus.  

  Roy – We clearly have a police station on campus.  To some degree, we 
patrol the campus.  If you care to, will that provide justification to being 
guarded? 

 President – No, it has to be the facility.  This facility isn’t guarded.  
o Provost Christine Curtis 

 I wanted to give you an update on Morton and Roberts Hall.  The architects are 
working on Morton Hall now.  The dream is usually bigger than the pocket book.  
They are taking some additional flourishes away from the building.  They are 
working on the classrooms in the addition to provide a size we need.  At this point it 
looks like we will have three classrooms for 100 and one over 100.  We will have 
three that are 70 – 80.  I think the addition will provide the larger classrooms that 



Faculty Senate 3-15-18   Page 4 

you have spoke of.  Morton and the addition will include medium size classrooms.  
There are multiple steps for the presentation.  The renovation will be done by fall of 
2019.  The addition will hopefully be available by January 2020.  Roberts Hall will 
start their renovation in fall of 2019. 

 Tenure and Promotion – I want to thank all the departments that have people going 
up for promotion.  All the letters have gone out except one letter.  It will go out as 
soon as external letters come in.  

 We are working with the librarians.  This will place them into the ladder.  A faculty 
committee has gone through and worked to place the librarians in a career ladder.  
The final decision will be made June 30th. 

 We are starting next fall to allow promotion for lecturers and senior lecturers. 
 The board items on the agenda are the PhD program in Nursing and the RTMC.  

ALDOT came and talked with our civil engineering to have a joint center.  They are 
providing the equipment and personnel to allow students to work with them to 
analyze data.  It is opened to any faculty member interested on campus.   

 Honor’s Day is on April 10th.  We will start with Honor’s College in Charger Union.  
Each college then has their Honor’s Day.  I hope that all of you will participate. 

 We have Faculty Awards on April 13th.  We will ask all those that have received 
tenure and being promoted to come. 

 The Dean search in Arts, Humanities, & Social Sciences, they have gone through the 
Zoom Search.  They have had video interviews with nine candidates.  Now four will 
come on campus for an interview.  We will have these in April.   

 Faculty hiring is going very well.  There are a number of interviews going on at this 
point.  A couple of offers have been made.  It looks like most of our searches have 
been successful.   

 Tim – As a final decision been made on Faculty 180?  On the board agenda, I 
didn’t hear Chapter 5? 

 Provost – It isn’t ready yet.  Per Board Rule 108, it doesn’t go to the board.  I 
am getting the chapter in final form and will send it to the President.  I 
honestly don’t know if it has to go to the committee.  It no longer goes to 
review by the Vice Chancellor. 

 Carmen – Have you requested that each ceremony be short for Honor’s 
Day? 

 Provost – It is an hour and fifteen minutes.  When we had them overlap, 
parents complained.  We have tried very hard so that a college could finish 
and the parents get to another place. 

 Carmen – Chemistry has been told they can’t give out Chemistry specific 
awards due to time constraint.   

 Provost – I am not aware of that. 
 Approval of Senate Meeting Minutes 586.  All in favor.  Ayes carry. 
 Accept FSEC report.  All in favor.  Ayes carry. 
 Officer/Committee Report 

o Christina Carmen, Governance and Operations Committee Chair 
 We are working to secure senators.  We will have a brief meeting today. 

o Monica Dillihunt, Undergraduate Scholastic Affairs Committee Chair 
 No report. 

o Tim Newman, Parliamentarian 



Faculty Senate 3-15-18   Page 5 

 No report. 
o Laird Burns, Finance and Resources Committee Chair 

 We have an ineligible student for the summer, other than that, it is finished. 
o Mike Banish, Past/President-Elect 

 No report. 
o Kader Frendi, Ombudsperson 

 No report. 
o David Johnson, Faculty and Student Development Committee Chair 

 No report. 
o Anne Marie Choup, Undergraduate Curriculum Committee Chair 

 We met a few weeks ago and are up to date. 
o Bill 416: 

 Tim – Last time in your report, you had a letter on the Child Policy? 
 Carmen – It is with the President.  It wants a similar type letter for the sexual 

misconduct policy.  This bill came back from David Johnson’s committee.  It has 
been submitted to the FSEC.  Tim moves to pass bill.  Kader seconds.   

 Roy – I was curious as to where it came from? 
 Carmen – Who wrote the bill? 
 Mike – I don’t remember who wrote the bill actually. 
 Roy – I try to do my due diligence.  
 David J. – The committee met with Laterrica.  The plan is for the university to 

maintain its current standard.  If the DOE has another Dear Colleague letter, they 
have to follow that.   

 Roy – Do we need a bill to say that? 
 David J. – I didn’t write the bill. 
 Tim – There was some discussion in our committee meeting.  I think the consensus 

was we wanted the faculty on record where they stood on the issue.  
 Carmen – All in favor of Bill 416.  Ayes carry. 3 abstain.  Bill passed second and third 

reading. 
o Bill 419: 

 This goes back a couple of years ago when faculty who taught large classes received 
incentives into their PI account.  Under the Williams administration it was removed. 

 Mike – When Phoenix University got sued for paying recruiters to bring in students.  
They said this fell under the same thing and removed it.  

 Carmen – Mike wrote the bill.  The intention is to bring this bill back.  
 Mike – The other problem that existed in the previous structure was we had certain 

departments that couldn’t take advantage of this.  They were limited to their class 
sized by certain laws.  We tried to recognize that by saying if you kept 90% of your 
starting number. 

 Tim – We did pass an amendment on this bill.  This bill distributed doesn’t reflect 
that.  A fourth category was added for 80 students.  

 Anne Marie – I think we cleaned up the language.  
 Tim – I think the concern is we gave you a grader, you have been compensated. 
 Mike – The easier way to say that would be under the first be it further resolved. 
 Jim – Is that cash money or PI money? 
 Mike – I think it was PI.  There were precedents for this already. 
 Laird – Does complete the class count toward the 90%? 
 Carmen – I think “F” students count 



Faculty Senate 3-15-18   Page 6 

 Mike – It says for the courses that are limited by class size by certain laws.  That is 
one category.  We are trying to makes this more inclusive across campus. 

 Joe – I don’t understand the numbers. 
 Mike – You will be set at the compensation levels based on those numbers. 
 Joe – Where does this come from? 
 Mike – The old policy broke down those tiers. 
 Joe – You may want to make that clear. 
 Mike – For English and nursing, it is set at the compensation for a 35 person class.  
 Carmen - I think it is unclear to those who weren’t here when this was in effect.  
 Joe – Would it be easier to do percentages?  I am more concerned about those who 

overload their classes.  We routinely have 38 students so they can take the class.  I 
would like to see incentives for those who take in more so they can get their class in 
when others sections are full. 

 Laird – I have a friendly amendment, “and increasing incremental compensation”.  
 Roy – To some degree, all these categories will be an administrative nightmare.   
 Tim – Personally, I think we just need to pass it as is.  The administration can adjust 

these numbers or they can reject it.  I think we would be satisfied with anything that 
comes back.  We have a lot of folks that are doing extra work and grading.  
Moreover, I heard there was a faculty that had 70 students that said he wouldn’t do 
any grading or assignments other than the final.  I think that is horrible.  I think we 
need to pass this for support. 

 Jeff – Motion to vote. 
 Carmen – All in favor.  Ayes carry. 2 oppose. 2 abstain.  Passes second reading.  Mike 

moves for third reading. Monica seconds.  Carmen, all in favor of third reading.  
Ayes carry. 1 opposed.  4 abstain.  All in favor of Bill 419.  Ayes carry.  1 opposed.  1 
abstains.  Bill passed third reading. 

o Bill 420: 
 Tim moves to adopt Bill 420 on second reading.  Mike seconds.   
 Jeff – I had put an amendment forward through email.  I am the author of this.  This 

is in regards to the frustration of money taking for depreciation.  My comment at 
that time is we are going to orphan our sons and daughters to put a roof on our 
house.  A comment was made that it reads more of a sense of senate.  I have an 
amendment to the existing bill. 

 Roy – I second the amendment. 
 Joe – I move the amendment.  Mike seconds. 
 Carmen – All in favor of the amendment as read by Jeff.  26 in favor.  1 opposed. 5 

abstain.  
 Roy – Motion to amend.  You can delete one sentence that will make the 

amendment stronger.   
 Meeting adjourned at 2:21 pm. 
 

 



SENATE BILL XXX:  Updating IT Policies  Feburary 2018 

 

Senate Bill XXX: Updating IT Policies 

SENATE BILL 423:  Updating IT Policies  1 

Passed 1st reading 2/8/2018  2 

 3 

WHEREAS  A collection of policies governing information technology were brought 4 

forward from UAH's Academic Affairs organization in recent years; and 5 

WHEREAS  The policies have identifiers of interim policies 02.01.36 through 02.01.49; and 6 

WHEREAS The collection of policies faced objections from Senators; and 7 

WHEREAS The objections included, among other items, the unworkable restrictions 8 

applied overly broadly to (1) research data, (2) computers hosting legacy 9 

software and devices, and (3) privately owned devices utilizing UAH wifi; and 10 

WHEREAS  There have been multiple communications to Academic Affairs administrators 11 

of the objections, including in written forms (including a Senate ad hoc 12 

subcommittee report of 3 October 2017) and in the form of verbal points raised 13 

and documented in open Faculty Senate and in group meetings between Senate 14 

delegations and administrative staffers (dating as far back at 2015), yet the 15 

objections have not yet been addressed; and 16 

WHEREAS  Said policies were also initially brought forward from administrators without 17 

involvement of affected students and faculty  18 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED 19 



SENATE BILL XXX:  Updating IT Policies  Feburary 2018 

 

Senate Bill XXX: Updating IT Policies 

That UAH Academic Affairs prioritize the revision of the policies to address the objections 20 

raised by Senators and the Senate ad hoc subcommittee, 21 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED 22 

That a schedule (satisfactory to the Senate's Executive Committee) for carrying out said 23 

revision be produced by Academic Affairs and reported to the Senate through the Senate 24 

President within 30 days of Senate passage of this bill, 25 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED 26 

That the interim policies named above (i.e., those policies numbered 02.01.36 through  27 

02.01.49) be suspended 60 days following the passage of this bill, 28 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED 29 

That the Senate President shall discuss regularly with Academic Affairs (1) the progress 30 

toward production of a schedule and (2) the progress on carrying out that schedule, with these 31 

discussions occurring regularly until satisfactory revisions have been accomplished,  32 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED 33 

That the Senate President shall update the Senate on said discussions’ contents at each Senate 34 

meeting until satisfactory policy revisions have been produced. 35 



Faculty Senate Bill No. 422 
 

Passed 1st reading 2/8/2018  

 
 

Whereas;  
 
One of the most important assets of The University of Alabama in Huntsville 
is the health of the institution’s faculty and staff; and 
 
Whereas; 
 
The UAH Faculty and Staff Clinic was established in June 2007 to serve 
the health needs of the faculty and staff; and 
 
Whereas; 
 
The Faculty and Staff Clinic has seen thousands of faculty and staff with 
10,476 clinic visits and saved the University an estimated $1,560,924 in 
insurance co-pays and other expenses and 31,428 hours of lost productivity; 
and 
 
Whereas; 
 
UAH may save more money by allowing spouses of staff to be treated at the 
Clinic; and  
 
Whereas; 
 
The success of the Clinic in terms of serving as a valuable source of health 
care for faculty and staff and a financial savings for the institution; therefore 
  
Be it resolved by the UAH Staff Senate that; 
 
The University administration increase funding to the Faculty and Staff 
Clinic to provide a registered nurse (1.0 FTE) to expand availability and 
services for University employees and their spouses beginning as soon as 
possible, but not later than the beginning of the 2018-2019 academic year. 

 



THE UNIVERSITY OF ALABAMA IN HUNTSVILLE 
FACULTY SENATE 

 
 

FACULTY SENATE RESOLUTION 17/18-XX:       
 
 

Importance of Vacant and Vacated Faculty Positions to Sustain 
the Educational Mission of the University of Alabama in Huntsville   

 
History: Bill 420 was submitted to FSEC for first reading on 11/30/2017 
  Bill 420 passed first reading on FSEC on 2/8/2018 
  Bill 420 passed second reading in Faculty Senate on XXXXXXXX 

Bill 420 passed third reading in Faculty Senate on XXXXXXXXXX 
 
 
 

Whereas a core mission of UAH is to educate individuals in leadership, innovation, critical 
thinking, and civic responsibility; and 

 

Whereas  this educational mission is provided primarily if not exclusively by faculty and 
staff in academic departments; and 

 

Whereas  the ability of an academic department to fulfill its role in the educational mission 
of UAH depends directly on its ability to assign teaching duties to qualified 
individuals; and 

 

Whereas  academic departments as a whole are the best judges of the qualifications that 
individuals must have to teach to the needs of the respective department; and 

 

Whereas  the process that an academic department must undergo to fill vacated or vacant 
faculty lines with qualified personnel often if not always takes at least a year to 
complete; and 

 

Whereas  when a faculty position is vacated, the absence of immediate, reliable, coherent, 
and consistent statements to assure the position will be filled undercuts the ability 
of the affected department to plan how to met its educational requirements in the 
short term; and 

 

Whereas  as long as a faculty position remains vacant, the sustained absence of reliable, 
coherent, and consistent statements to assure the position is to be filled 
undermines the ability of the affected department to maintain its educational 



mission and negatively impacts the morale of the affected department over the 
long term; and 

 

Whereas  academic departments at UAH have had positions vacated and have positions 
remain vacant even as the duties and responsibilities required of the affected 
department to meet their educational missions have remained constant if not 
increased over that period; and 

 

Whereas  the administration has taken upon themselves to capture vacated and vacant faulty 
lines from academic departments to a central pool of positions; and 

 

Whereas  the administration has also indicated that it plans to disburse vacant and vacated 
positions later according schedules that they set; and 

 

Whereas  the administration has given reasons for taking this approach that appear non-
committal toward or ignorant of the needs of the affected departments to meet and 
sustain their own constant or growing educational needs; 

 

Therefore, be it resolved 
that actions taken wherein vacated or vacant faculty positions are captured back to and held 
within a central pool of positions above department level, especially without giving due diligence 
to provide immediate, reliable, coherent, and consistent information back to the departments to 
plan to fill the positions, are deemed to be counter to sustaining the educational mission of UAH. 
In the short term, such actions immediately undercut the ability of the affected department to 
plan, assign, and implement its teaching responsibilities with an account to meet its educational 
standards. In the long term, such actions undermine the ability of the affected department to 
maintain its educational standards and also damage the morale within the affected department. 
 

Be it further resolved  
that, effective Fall 2018, vacated positions that have been administered solely within an 
academic unit shall no longer be captured to a central pool in order to address budget shortfalls 
in financial accounts at UAH. 


